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[RER R R FE R A E BB (B=202253A318) e
Number of Licences and Statements of ME IR (2021/22 FE)
Particulars of Business (as at 31/3/2022)

23,035 1,280

s 2 R —FERHER

Salesperson’s Licence
P At First-sale Sites*

18,981 776

HERIE (EA )RR HhE IR 4
Estate Agent’s Licence At Estate Agency
(individual) Shops

IR (R R) KR i \
N LU = ==
Estate Agent’s Licence ﬁ%&/ﬁ?&&mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%—ﬁ HE
(company) About Antl—Mopey.LaunFierlng/ .
Counter-Terrorist Financing regulations

7,160

EEFIBUHBE 1 r 1 O 1

Statement of particulars 48 FEL

of business Online Advertisements

Number of Compliance Inspections (2021/22)

*

* BIEERMAER  BRHEEERENA -

* Includes the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

Z4£ N B(2021/22 &£ EF)

Number of Examination Candidates (2021/22)

5,236

WERBEREZH B F S /BEHm e FR BB (2021722 1)

Estat.e Agents o Number of Licences Suspended / Revoked
Qualifying Examination (2021/22)

6,556

BEBARER 18
Salespersons iy M 3E
Qualifying Examination Suspended

32

Revoked

R EF{E 2 (2021722 £ )
Number of Complaint Cases (2021/22)

285

RGeS BEEEEBTHNSEAK (202122 FE)

"= =3
Opened Number of Enrolments in Continuing
2 78 Professional Development Activities (2021/22)

B Te R Y 8] 28 *
Completed*

* HORAFEENER  ETEEREEBENIIEN TLEEES
BEOER  URBERFRITHBEENHRAEETHLOMEE -

* Some cases completed in the year were brought forward from
previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and
dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases
disposed of by the Complaints and Enforcement Sections.
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About Us

The Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) is a statutory body established
in November 1997 under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAO”). Its
principal functions are to regulate the practice of the estate agency trade
in Hong Kong, promote integrity and competence within the industry,
and facilitate training for practitioners to ensure a proper standard of
conduct.

The EAA organises qualifying examinations, issues licences to
individuals and companies, handles complaints against licensees,
conducts compliance inspections and metes out disciplinary sanctions
to practitioners who have breached the EAO. The EAA also organises
activities for the professional development of the trade and promotion of
consumer education.

The EAA is a self-financing body. It consists of a Chairman, a Vice-
chairman, and not more than 18 ordinary members from various sectors
in the community, including the estate agency sector. The Chairman,
Vice-chairman and every ordinary member are appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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HIE RS/ Corporate Profile

FES By Vision & Mission
FIHFES Our Vision
EEGH IR The EAA strives for

s TIEHEMEREERNNPELEKRE e excellence in regulating the practice of the estate agency trade, for
MRAE - MREBEEHEMED + & the protection of consumers’ interests; and

o THRHMEREBEIEETEEZRE  LER e supporting the development of an estate agency profession worthy

HEBEEH - of the respect of the community.
BRMwfED Our Mission

RERBMEREBEENRE @ BAKES To regulate the practice of estate agency in Hong Kong, raise the
MEXERED  TAERF Y SREEEE competence of practitioners and set high standards of ethics and
Ag=F o conduct befitting the trade.
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Chairman’s Message

This is the 14™ year of my service on the board of the Estate Agents
Authority (“EAA”).

A milestone reached

Last year, the EAA started a new chapter. We purchased our second
office in Chai Wan. Most of the EAA staff reunited in our own premises
located in the same building. The new office is a milestone for the EAA.
It represents a strong and stable foundation on which the EAA performs
its role as the regulator of the practice of the estate agents, as well as its
role in promoting the integrity and competence of the estate agents. It
also evidences our commitment to serving the Hong Kong society and
maintaining a sustainable development of the EAA.

With this stable foundation, we step into 2022 and will celebrate the 25"
anniversary of the EAA’s establishment.

| believe you will agree with me that the practice of the estate agents
today is better regulated than 25 years ago. This is the accomplishment
of the EAA in the past quarter of a century. With the effective
gatekeeping mechanism in place, there was an improvement in the
quality and integrity of the trade’s services. We have witnessed dynamic
changes in the trade, take for instance, entrants to the trade came with
higher educational level or other professional backgrounds, technology
was widely adopted in the practice of estate agency trade, and the
trade’s alertness on professionalism heightened. To the trade, we
advocate the value of being a “5A agents”. To the public, we encourage
them to be “smart consumers”. To ourselves, we strive to continue
our work closely in touch with the changing trends of the trade and
the community but without any compromise on the core professional
standard and integrity.

Facing unprecedented challenges, the EAA stood strong

The accomplishments of the EAA do not come easily, especially
in the recent years. The EAA and the estate agency industry have
both weathered the storm and overcome the obstacles triggered by
the pandemic and the social unrest in the recent years. Facing the
unprecedented challenges to Hong Kong society and the economy, we
maintained a firm grab of the helm and sailed on.
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The EAA’s principal statutory function is to regulate and control the
practice of the estate agents. A firm and effective scheme on disciplinary
matters is essential. | could tell from my experience as the Chairman
of the Disciplinary Committee for 8 years, the Licensing Committee for
two years, the Section 28 Investigation Committee for two years, and
being the Chairman of the Authority, the maintenance of a fair and firm
scheme on disciplinary matters regulating the practice of the trade has
always been a priority. Advanced data analysis technology was adopted
in the conduct of online compliance checks on property portals and
advertisements. Strict sanctions would be imposed in the right cases
and malpractices deterred.

A good regulatory regime should not be maintained only by disciplinary
sanction. Education, promotion and training must go hand in hand
with sanction. In addition to instilling to the licensees the importance
of training, the EAA spared no effort in the education of the public on
their awareness of possible pitfalls in property transactions. We have

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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also walked an extra mile to cover important area of non-local property
purchases although strictly speaking this is not within the ambit of
our statutory function. We promoted and impressed on consumers’
awareness of making informed and smart choices. We organised many
seminars and workshops to give practical tips to consumers on this
area. We advocated a healthy and professional environment for the
practice of the estate agents in all aspects of property transactions.

Together we serve

Together, we serve. We serve Hong Kong people. We inspired the trade
to contribute to the society. One of our initiatives is the Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) projects with active participation of the trade. In
2021/22, the EAA launched the fourth CSR project, the “Estate Agents
Energy Saving Award Scheme”. As the name of the project suggests,
energy saving was the target. The results were encouraging. Over 900
estate agency shops participated and over 250,000 units of electricity
were saved — which is equal to the electricity consumption of a one-HP
air conditioner running continuously for 250,000 hours!

Professionalism is the pinnacle

The “5A agent” is not only a slogan but a target for our licensees. We
expect our licensees to uphold professionalism. While learning the
knowledge, law and practice of estate agency are essential focus of our
Continuing Professional Development Scheme (“CPD Scheme”), we
place equal emphasis on practical courses to facilitate licensees to attain
the “6A” qualities such as “Ability” and “Advancement”. The qualities of
“Accountability” and “Adherence” are also part of the cornerstone of the
trade and the EAA.

Embrace our next 25 years

To commemorate our 25" anniversary this year, the EAA will launch a
series of events. It is a time to review the past and embrace the future.
At the “age” of 25, we accumulated experiences and laid our foundation,
we learnt some lessons from which we modified and advanced our
works. As we put forward through our anniversary slogan: “Together we
Establish, Advocate and Achieve ((XFtE % MRS EA)”. The EAA has
delivered an exemplary service to Hong Kong society over the past 25
years. It will continue to discharge the statutory functions faithfully and
effectively. The EAA is still young and energetic. There is plenty of room
for the EAA and the estate agency trade to grow and there are also
infinite possibilities for us to explore.
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ERMBHIT—Z BFalEEFRERN While we turn to a new chapter and work towards a better tomorrow,
Rl - RAMNEBRENTIRRTESER | must pay tribute to all former and present Board members, EAA
KE - EERITHEN  BNER - E Administration, the Government, the estate agency trade and other
RIBEMNEE RAE MR & BE - R stakeholders of the EAA, for their continuing support along these years.
tMZFERBETENZF - ERAAK It is our concerted effort that made the industry advance. Let us set sail
REFTAEE FTHSITETHES - ER for the future in different capacities, break the waves and discover our
PI—EETR A _EH R MR - 3F new continent together.

[RBOR - FRERFTES o

BEBR ATt Elaine LIU, JP
TE Chairman
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic continues as | present my
ninth report as the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Estate Agents
Authority (“EAA”). The tightening measures due to the fifth wave of the
pandemic had caused notable disruptions to businesses and every walk
of life and the EAA was no exception. Notwithstanding, the EAA team
remained responsive and diligent and made every effort to mitigate the
disruptions. As a result, we were able to accomplish our major targets in
the year.

Special measures under the fifth wave of the pandemic

Amidst the adversity and uncertainty brought by the pandemic, the
EAA made swift adjustments to its daily operations. Special measures
were carried out under the fifth wave of the pandemic, including closing
our offices to the public temporarily and increasing the capacity of our
computer server to facilitate our staff to work from home.

Further, in response to the “new normal” in society, the EAA arranged for
staff to process licence applications by electronic means and employed
more information technology tools to step up online compliance checks
on property advertisements and portals. The EAA also switched its
staff recruitment procedure to an online format, such that written tests
were conducted online and interviews for candidates administered
through video conferencing. For the public, we arranged online public
seminars, online media interviews and online press conferences, as well
as CPD webinars during the year. In the next phase, we would consider
conducting online inquiry hearings, as and when appropriate.

Gatekeeping the estate agency trade

According to the government statistics, in the financial year of 2021/22,
the total number of property transactions recorded a year-on-year
increase of 4.3%, amounting to 87,030, with a total consideration of
$834 billion, which is 13.1% higher than 2020/21. The reviving property
transactions and value attracted more persons entering the trade.

Though four qualifying examinations were cancelled due to the pandemic
during the year, the overall number of candidates registered for the
qualifying examinations recorded an increase of 13% when compared
with the previous year and the number of licensees hit a record high to
42,408 in February 2022.
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In 2021/22, the EAA received 285 complaints, a decrease of 25% from
380 complaints in 2020/21. The complaints concerning non-compliant
advertisements also recorded a decrease. The common categories of
complaints included mishandling of provisional agreements for sale and
purchase (or provisional tenancy agreements), and providing inaccurate
or misleading property information.

Furthermore, the EAA conducted a total of 3,357 inspections to ensure
the trade’s compliance, which was a 23.4% increase compared to the
previous year. Among these inspections, 1,280 checks were conducted
at first-sale sites and 766 visits were paid to estate agency shops. In
addition, the EAA also screened online property advertisements 1,101
times during the year.

In 2021/22, the EAA revoked a total of 32 licences because those
licensees were no longer eligible to hold a licence. The EAA has also
adjudicated 318 non-complaint cases and a total of 313 licensees were
disciplined.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22

15



1T AR S0 I ¥

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

(o) B E BT ERL MR A  ITEREBI Rt - RE N AR AEREB AT AR R EEEREETER LS
(form left) EAA Director of Operations Mr Chan U Keng, Chief Executive Officer Ms Ruby Hon, Director of Regulatory Affairs
and General Counsel Ms Juliet Leung and Director of Services and Professional Development Mr lvan Wong
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Public concern on issues arising from purchasing
properties situated outside Hong Kong (POH)

As nowadays some consumers are interested in purchasing properties
situated outside Hong Kong (“POH”), the Consumer Council in October
2021 issued a study report on enhancing consumer protection in the
purchase of POH. The EAA and the Government studied the report at
length and held meetings with various groups of stakeholders to discuss
the Council’s recommendations, which include, inter alia, requiring all
estate agents who engage in the sale of first-hand residential POH to be
licensed.
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According to the complaints received by the EAA in recent years, most
issues in relation to POH originated from the vendors/developers. Such
being the case, any proposed measures targeting estate agents could
not resolve issues that are concerned with the vendors/developers or
the projects themselves. It should be noted that even if all estate agents
were regulated in the sale of POH, vendors/developers can still conduct
their POH sales directly without involving agents or they could conduct
their promotional activities online, rendering any attempted regulation of
estate agents alone unlikely to be effective. Moreover, any attempt to
restrict the sales of POH in Hong Kong through licensed estate agents
only will act contrary to the principle of free trade and will also deprive
consumers of their basic right to purchase the POH direct from the
vendors/developers. Hence, consumer education to remind potential
buyers to be wary of the risks involved in a POH purchase remains
paramount. The EAA and the Government have been considering the
way forward in response to the report.

As always, the EAA continues to spare no effort in educating consumers
on this issue by various means, e.g. organising public seminars,
launching waves of online promotions and an Announcement in
the Public Interest (“API”) on major TV and radio stations, arranging
media interviews, articles write-ups and distributing the booklet titled
“Purchasing Non-local Properties Be SMART” through media to the
public with the aim to remind them of the risks involved in purchasing
POH. The EAA will continue its educational efforts on this subject in the
coming year.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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Enhancing the professionalism and image of the trade

To enhance the professionalism of the trade and facilitate continuous
learning of estate agents in estate agency shops, the EAA continues
to promote the CPD Mark for the Estate Agencies Award Scheme as
a recognition for the continuous professional advancement made by
the staff of the awarded estate agency shops. A total of 188 estate
agency shops were awarded the CPD Mark in the year for their active
participation in the Continuing Professional Development Scheme, which
is a record high in the past 10 years.

As the COVID-19 pandemic accelerated the development of the online
learning mode, the EAA has launched more webinars/online training
classes as a new activity mode under the CPD scheme and launched
more new e-learning programmes for the trade. During the year, the
number of enrolments of the e-learning programmes and webinars
increased by 71% compared with the previous year. With the subsidy
from the Government Matching Grant Scheme for Skill Upgrading
under the second round of the Anti-epidemic Fund, the EAA has also
appointed HKU SPACE to launch two brand new CPD training courses,
namely, “Learning English through Land Search” and “Video Production
for Estate Agency Trade Using Smartphone” which were free-of-charge
for licensees to join and the response was overwhelming.

In addition, the EAA launched an “Estate Agents Energy Saving Award
Scheme” in April 2021 with a view to encouraging estate agents to
contribute to protecting the planet by joining hands in fighting against
global warming through reducing carbon emissions, which received
positive support from the trade. Over 900 estate agency shops enrolled
in the scheme and a total of 387 participating estate agency shops were
awarded. The result of the Scheme is encouraging as it demonstrated to
the public the positive and caring attitude of the trade.

25% Anniversary and outlook

In 2021, the EAA purchased another office premises in the same building
of our existing Chai Wan office. Since then, most of our staff moved
to the two offices in Chai Wan. The relocation would help stablise the
EAA’s operating cost in the long run and maintain a smooth operation of
the EAA.

The year 2022 marks the 25" Anniversary of the enactment of the Estate
Agents Ordinance and the establishment of the EAA. The EAA will
continue to spare no effort in elevating the trade to a profession worthy
of public trust and respect and in strengthening trade compliances and
promoting consumer education, so that the trade can make greater
contributions to Hong Kong. To celebrate the occasion, a series of
events and a ceremony will be held.
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A word of thanks

2021/22 was a challenging year especially under the impact of the fifth
wave of the pandemic. | sincerely appreciate the indispensable support
of the Government, the EAA’s Board Chairman, Vice-chairman and
Committee Chairpersons, past and present EAA members, and all our
stakeholders so that the EAA can smoothly operate and deliver its best.
In the same vein, the staff of the EAA under the able leadership of the
respective Directors have put in another year of dedicated hard work
and relentless efforts. | am proud of their professionalism and strong
commitment.

| believe that the EAA has dutifully discharged its statutory functions
in regulating the practice of estate agency in Hong Kong, raising the
competence of practitioners and setting high standards of ethics for the
trade in the past 25 years. The EAA will continue to gear up and look
forward to a brighter future, full of new opportunities, after the pandemic.

Ruby HON Yuen-ping
Chief Executive Officer

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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Corporate Governance

RIRAREEE RBNEERAFEOHED To enhance public trust in the Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) and for
E’& Ml BikEE  BEERBMNIEARES the best interests of its stakeholders, the EAA spares no effort in taking

C EBRITCHEREIEN) THRER corporate governance to a higher level and reaching a high standard of
HESEHE  AF  BEUAERAE - integrity, impartiality, accountability and transparency when discharging

its duties under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAO”).

=540
HEEBERER Governance Framework
HIBEERERE Governance structure

EEREERREREZES The EAA Board and Standing Committees
RRERNEELZES e Strategic Development and Management Committee
LELEE e Disciplinary Committee
RRREZEE Licensing Committee
HERERE Practice and Examination Committee

BEERE Professional Development Committee

EENEE

Supervision and Guidance

BEERERE
Accountability and
Transparency

H EriE e

Checks and Balances

o HIFEEEM e The Ombudsman's Review

o iR e Appeals
o YNEREEAZ e External Audit

EHHE Stakeholders
(AT~ #ER (e.g. the public, trade
KB and the Government)
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EERESRRAEAK
EES
EERREERNESARAM AEH

B o B S T ) K B AN
RBBEIETE R - T TR -

EREZR UREEEREREREERT
BABPIERIR
EEFRAK

GEEREHRI)HEERESRNAKE
PETER %?% RSB BERE AR

TER18 BEBXE - REREHE L
RI5R5 - BREMERETENEGLEE

B -EBERMENTHETE BEBIFH
THRETEREEARATREML - fTEIHME
MFATESRKEREMRE—EER

AEEABEE BRI T
EERKEXAZTILES  UHEBTH

R - ERLEE  BREKEMENRE -
YMEER BE XE IE 2R g5t
HEEZBLEMARNE  REERTHR
BXRMARBY B - RAMERIER

WREINKEEE @ T REZREH
EEEBRLIERE - SREFEMEE

HELE - ERREEFRRENURRF
AMERFENAFRN T —EEZH -

EERMERERITRAHEBAATRAL
BT SRIEB - FRAERAEEERH
TG ERIBESG) - ﬂmﬁwﬁﬁwﬁﬂ
o MITHRBHAZEETHIHM - A8
ﬂﬁ%%%mﬁm VWEEEBERHSHE
HEEK -

The EAA Board and composition
The Board

The highest decision-making authority of the EAA is the Board. It
sets the overall strategic direction and policies of the EAA, such as
considering and endorsing its corporate plan, annual work plan and
annual budget. It also supervises and monitors the performance of the
EAA Administration.

Board composition

The constitution of the EAA Board is stipulated by the EAO. The EAA
Board consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and not more than 18
ordinary members from different sectors of the community, including
the estate agency sector and the Transport and Housing Bureau. All
Board members are determined and appointed for a fixed term by
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
After appointment, new Board members will be provided with briefings
and information packages by the EAA Administration to familiarise
themselves with the work of the EAA.

Board members come from varied backgrounds with diverse knowledge,
experience and expertise, including the sectors of estate agency,
property development, business, legal, surveying, finance, accounting
professions, consumer affairs and academia. They bring to the Board
their own wisdom and independent perspectives. The combination of
members from within and outside the estate agency trade also provides
the Board with a more balanced and holistic view when setting policies
and identifying measures. The names and details of all current Board
members are listed in the next section of this report.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the
EAA are held by different persons and their roles are segregated. The
Chairman is responsible for leading the Board in enforcing the EAO,
setting strategies and policies for the EAA, while the CEO is the head of
the EAA Administration responsible for executing the decisions of the
Board and administering everyday business and affairs of the EAA.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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E =3 K & Board membership
& CHAIRMAN

BERAFHL

(202257 H28H)

KEED

[EREFEEGTE

BB LREEGEITE

TR EREZEGEITE
REXEERZENHELRZESTR
ERAANFRPOLEREGTE

s BRFAAMEERBENE

mﬂ>

e o o o
D

Ms Elaine LIU, JP
(up to 28 July 2022)

Barrister-at-law

e Chairman, Licensing Appeals Board

e Deputy Chairman, Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance)

e Deputy Chairman, Administrative Appeals
Board

e Member, Travel Industry Authority and
Chairman of its Disciplinary Committee

e Chairman, Disciplinary Committee of
Financial Dispute Resolution Centre

e Member, Department of Justice’s Steering
Committee on Mediation

ElEE VICE-CHAIRMAN

FEFBBSATH L
(202247 A29 B #EHAE X %)

FHEEMTEBA
BREYETHLFERESEFE
BERLEE (EFRE)E/E
BB E LREEB SR8
EHFREEG (BEE)EFE (2007-2013)
EHREEETRE)ZE (2013-2017)
EEFRITHREER LFRE2EIEFE
(2013-2019)

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
(appointed Chairman since 29 July 2022)

Partner, Hastings & Co.

e Chairman, Environmental Impact
Assessment Appeal Board Panel

e (Chairman, Board of Review (Film
Censorship)

e Member, The Torture Claims Appeal Board

e Chairman, Appeal Panel (Housing) (2007-
2013)

e Member, Appeal Board Panel (Town
Planning) (2013-2017)

e Deputy Chairman, HKSAR Passports Appeal
Board (2013-2019)
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B EE T2

BEXESHTRE

o EBNBEEZICEFCESF

o BEEWEEREBETERELATIER
BHEZEEER

o HEIRMESRESEE

o EHAABIRELSEMN

o EELKEBGHAER

Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning

Executive Director, Construction
Industry Council

e Director, Hong Kong Green
Building Council

e Advisory Committee Chairman,
Faculty of Science and Engineering
(Civil Engineering), Chu Hai College
of Higher Education

e Council Member, Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers

e Advisor, University of Hong Kong
Engineering Alumni Association

e |mmediate Past President, Hong
Kong Institution of Highways and
Transportation

H &8 Corporate Governance
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RENACEERBEKE

LREHE (REY) XFE
tHRZEE(ER)ER
BREREM EHRE B e B
xiE

o LHFEEE (BRI L) EF

s BUEREFRBRFZESERS

Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP
Consultant, Kwok, Yih & Chan

e Member, Solicitors Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel

e (Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Buildings)

e Chairman, Appeal Panel (Housing)

e Chairman, Fishermen Claims Appeal
Board (Trawl Ban)

e Chairman, Appeal Board (Amusement
Game Centres)

e (Observer, Independent Police
Complaints Council

BARERE
ERABEREELBRARBRREAE
SRR EITRMEM

« RRMEEERRFERZAREE

o MK EFZEERERF (2007-2018)

Mr CHOW Wai-shun

Associate Professor and Head,
Department of Professional Legal
Education, The University of Hong
Kong

Consultant, Chu & Lau Solicitors &
Notaries

e Member, Process Review Panel for
Insurance Authority

e Deputy Chairman, Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance)
(2007-2018)

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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A& MEMBERS

ezt

RKEF SR AERER™
(CAEEHMBREEESE)

s MAMEEERAERAK
HeLZEEKE

s BMHHEFRKE

s BHHERZBEEXR

Ms Meena DATWANI

Senior Advisor (Financial Services
Regulatory Affairs), Ernst & Young

* Member, Accreditation and Exemption
Committee, Private Wealth Management
Association

e Board Member, Pathfinders

e Chair of the Governance Committee,
Pathfinders

AENBEMHA T #+

ERETABRERFEHEBRARKR
s MEEERFEERILR

s BRAFEMEBEREZEEKE
s EFMMEERERZEGRE
REGFTEZEEZEEB

o HEREZEEEHFEE/ A
ZESZLE

o D HFEEBIEMR/MEKE

Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man,
MH, JP

Professor, Department of Building
and Real Estate, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

e \ice Chairman, The Property
Management Services Authority

e Member, Audit Committee, Hong Kong
Housing Society

e Member, Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts, Securities and
Futures Commission

e Member, Subsidised Housing
Committee, Hong Kong Housing
Authority

e Member, Panel of Advisors, Land
Sharing Pilot Scheme

R E %4 SBS, FSDSM,
FSMSM

AMEHR R R R

Mr LAI Man-hin, SBS,
FSDSM, FSMSM

Former Director of Fire Services
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A& MEMBERS

MEERHRAFH LT

(£2022%6A30H)

BEREMMEERERARARARER

(2202256 H24R)

o WEEHE (H2022F1A1HE
202296 518H)

. FEARAMEMBBESEHENTR

s AAREASBHBLRIFBHE

Professor Nelson LAM
Chi-yuen, JP
(up to 30 June 2022)

Founder and Chairman, Nelson CPA
Limited (up to 24 June 2022)

e Member, Legislative Council
(1 January to 18 June 2022)

e Hong Kong Accounting Consulting
Expert, The Ministry of Finance, The
People’s Republic of China

e Adjunct Professor, The School of

Business, Hong Kong Baptist University

EEEERAERM
(Z£2022%5A310)
EEAEMERTERKEL

o mEAEREZEE (2017-20185%2020)

o RREBLRABHELR
o LIHREHECGEEYIE

s BUERENREBRFEEGZERE

REBZESTR
e THREHRZESETRE

s BFLHEEBERZESLANAL

FRBE®ZEB

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
(up to 31 May 2022)

Senior Counsel, Des Voeux Chambers

e Deputy Judge, the High Court
(2017-2018 & 2020)

e Chairperson, Insurance Appeals
Tribunal

e Chairman, Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Buildings)

e Member, Independent Police
Complaints Council and Chairman
of the Legal Committee

e Deputy Chairman, Administrative
Appeals Board

e Member, Disciplinary Chair Committee,

Securities and Futures Commission

EKKSBSAF# L

EMNEERERE
BiRERDRERE

o F1R2RIBEFBRARBUAHEEH
tRHEREERE
BERAERKEREEZRE8
EEMBAZERZEEKE
EERMEEAREZRKE
HISEBNEEEEE
ERMEEZREEE

Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP

Deputy Chairman, Sino Group
Chairman, Yeo Hiap Seng Limited

e Member, The 121" and 13" Beijing
Municipal Committees of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative
Conference

e Member, Council of The University of
Hong Kong

e Member, Court of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology

e Member, Board of Hong Kong Science

and Technology Parks Corporation
e Member, Advisory Panel of Cyberport
e Director, Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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A& MEMBERS

BEELE

BEHMEEEERATRIMRARITERAR

e BELIRERXBAEXRGELZSE
rMERZECFEREBEESEEE

o EEHEIIBMERIBEITESN
ERCE =]

s BEJRPEHERGEIREZESEE

L4 ?/B/QK/"”E?XE AAA%@AE

o HEMERENAGE —REER
RNEDESERE

o BEAMETHMEESE

Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang

Founder and Chief Executive Officer,
Super Land Property Group Limited

e Chairman, Sedentary & Professional
Services Safety & Health Committee
and Member, Publicity Committee,
Occupational Safety & Health Council

e Member, Real Estate Agency, Industry
Consultative Networks, Employees
Retraining Board

e Member, Real Estate Services Training
Board, Vocational Training Council

e Honorary President, Investment Institute
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area

e First Vice-Chairman, Hong Kong Real
Estate Agencies General Association
and Chairman, of its East Kowloon
District Branch

e Member, Hong Kong Institute of Real
Estate Administration

ARz E

HEIRT (BB BRAFE
TrEERpagE

o HELOAGEARKRBENAZESGNKE
s BEEBEFIIREE
L E/%Ii/uafi$

Ms Phoebe TSE Siu-ling

General Manager, Commercial
Banking Department, Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited

e Member, the Hong Kong Export Credit
Insurance Corporation Advisory Board

e Member, the Employees Retraining
Board

e General Committee Member, the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries

BB
TN ERR (B8 ERATEE
o IAEBRBRBHEZERBEA
o BAEXWERMNESY

s EEREBIMEBETERSR
o EEBEIIRITHELBNEEZE
s REHEMFETEZESERE

o ItAMHPRBREEEES

Mr TSOI Chi-chung

Director and Chairman, Asia Property

Holdings (Hong Kong) Company

Limited

e Member and Convener, Shanxi
Municipal Committees of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative
Conference

e President, Hong Kong Chamber of
Professional Property Consultants
Limited

e Chief President, Eastern District
Industries & Commerce Association

e Member, Real Estate Agency, Industry
Consultative Networks, Employees
Retraining Board

e Member, Eastern District Fight Crime
Committee

e Member, North Point, West Area
Committee
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A& MEMBERS

BEFfART

EBEEREIERESALE
EMIHHAERARYMTES

s XBEEZESARAFTESERAER

o AEHNEABEYNERESZTBENE
EREEEALHERHEE

o BEGHIMAGEREE

Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi

Deputy Chairman and Managing

Director, Midland Holdings Limited

Executive Director, Midland IC&I

Limited

e Director and Vice President, Midland
Charitable Foundation Limited

e Member, Sponsorship and
Development Fund Committee, Hong
Kong Metropolitan University

e Standing Committee Member, The
Association of Hong Kong Professionals

¢ Fellow Member, The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

=ERFZ L
EREZEER @ﬁg

HEBEEFLESEEZE

RIS u@;{' S®%8

?;aimﬂ EEREIER
ek g

% BrRIA Eﬂ?ﬁ%?%

IREXEEESEEEZECERE

FriEIEE R F &ri,\aéé

Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

Chief Executive, Consumer Council

Ex-officio Member, Management
Committee of the Consumer Legal
Action Fund

Member, Advisory Committee on Travel
Agents

Member, Deposit-taking Companies
Advisory Committee, Hong Kong
Monetary Authority

Member, Hong Kong Council for
Testing and Certification

Member, Travel Industry Compensation
Fund Management Board

Member, Steering Committee on
Prevention and Control of Non-
communicable Diseases

EEEMHAT ML

FREEREERABDZABER
RITHAR

o HREEESERATERE

L4 1.}\§*’¥(iﬂﬁ5) HHEZEEKE

o HERNERZERNEZELZEENE
s HERBEHEECEELZEENE
s BHIRBLEEREE®ELER

o BEFERERTHAEHENER

D

U \

Mr Addy WONG Wai-hung,
MH, JP

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
- Asia Pacific, Centaline Property
Agency Limited

e Chairman, Centaline Charity Fund
Limited

e Member, Personal Data (Privacy)
Advisory Committee

e Member, Lump Sum Grant Steering
Committee, Social Welfare Department

e Member, Quality Education Fund
Steering Committee, Education Bureau

e Board of Governors, Hong Kong
Sinfonietta

e |Immediate Past President, Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives
Association

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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REHKEMH
BIEABYEERATES

RNEEERBEER
BEAMEREREESRIER
EBBRITHREE NEEEE
AE@RHNEEGEZE
MRREeEHES
BERRBEAARRKEREEGERE

i3S
I]]]D

REe%

\

Mr YU Chi-wing, MH

Director, Wealth Tai Po Property
Limited

Chairman, Tai Po District Residents
Association

Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Real Estate
Agencies General Association

Member of the Sixth Election
Committee of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region

Member, District Fire Safety Committee
(Tai Po District)

Managing Director, New Territories
General Chamber of Commerce
Member, Election Committee of the
Hong Kong Deputies to the National
People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China

®HEztL

EEBAEEETESRAT

BYFHITES

o EAFRRELZECREZECERF
;EE

o %ﬁ%@lﬁ% BertElEmEaeika

BEMHEERERZESRFER
éEAWE
Y sBEEEEeXE
[ERTUHREETESIRIERZHE
MEFETES | REELHEESEE

Ms Helen ZEE

Independent non-executive director
of Henderson Sunlight Asset
Management Limited

Chairperson, Investment Committee
and Member of Hong Kong Deposit
Protection Board

Member, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Advisory Committee
Member, Securities & Futures
Commission Process Review Panel
Member, Cyberport Advisory Panel
Member, Investment Advisory Board of
Police Children’s Education Trust and
Police Education & Welfare Trust

SR SR A P A

(FE20224A50)

ERrkFEERENER(BRE)
(BarkFEEREAHER (BB AR)

Mrs Alice CHEUNG CHIU
Hoi-yue, JP
(up to 5 April 2022)

Deputy Secretary for Transport
and Housing (Housing)
(Representative of Permanent
Secretary for Transport and
Housing (Housing))
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EHEBBSATHL
(20227 A29 R TREIERE)

Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP
(appointed Vice-chairman since 29 July 2022)

RREERKERM
(20226 A1H#E)

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin,
Senior Counsel

(since 1 June 2022)

RXBEREHL Mr Donald NG Man-kit, JP
(2022F4 A6 B #8) (since 6 April 2022)
ERkERERANER (BER) Deputy Secretary for Transport and
(20225 7A1ERNBAEERARER) Housing (Housing)

(BB REEREARER (BB AR) (renamed as Deputy Secretary for
(2022F7R1HNEBAEEREARER) Housing effective from 1 July 2022)

(Representative of Permanent Secretary
for Transport and Housing (Housing))
(renamed as Permanent Secretary for
Housing effective from 1 July 2022)

ERLLZL

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
(£2021410A31A0)

(up to 31 October 2021)

REMERLE

Mr NG Kai-man
(£2021410A31A0)
(up to 31 October 2021)

>
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Standing Committees

There are five standing committees under the EAA Board to oversee the
various aspects of the EAA’s work. All committees shall consist of at
least three members. All committee members are appointed by the EAA
Board.

The EAA Board may also set up panels and work groups to deal with
particular issues from time to time. When necessary, the EAA may also
appoint other persons (i.e. Board-appointed members) who are not
members of the EAA Board to the committees, panels or work groups.

Terms of reference of the EAA’s standing committees 2021/22 are listed
in the following section.

Terms of reference and membership

Strategic Development and Management Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To consider strategic issues of long-term significance, in
preparation for consideration by the Board.

To align the work and decisions of the various standing
committees and/or work groups/panels of the EAA with a view to
achieving common goals and resolving divergences (if any) which
may arise in connection with or out of the carrying out of their
respective functions.

To monitor trade and community response to the EAA regulations,
policies and measures and, on such basis, recommend appropriate
actions to the Board and/or the standing committees for consideration.

To examine issues of major financial significance, in particular, draft
statements of accounts, appointment of external auditor, staff cost
implications, budgetary matters, long-term financial planning and
asset management, and to make recommendations to the Board
for consideration.

To review and endorse the annual work plan and budget prepared
by the Administration and to recommend the same to the Board
for consideration.

To devise guidelines for and make recommendations to the Board
on the investment of the EAA monies.
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Membership (as at 31 March 2022):

10.

11.

12.

To examine issues of major significance in human resources
management, in particular, the pay structure, remuneration and
allowance policies and terms and conditions of employment of the
EAA employees (including the CEO and Directors), and to make
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

To review and approve establishment structure, reorganisation,
manpower planning and development of human resources policies
and procedures.

At the direction of the Chairman, to review and evaluate the
performance of the CEO and Directors for the purpose of
confirmation of appointment, extension of probation, promotion,
dismissal, termination or renewal of employment or other
employment related issues and the granting of any performance-
linked awards, and to make recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the
Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee Chairman
may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to
make recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

To perform such other tasks as the Board may from time to time
delegate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to the
exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and when
the Committee considers necessary.

=+ /% Chairman: BERANFat Ms Elaine LIU, JP
BEExRE Mr CHOW Wai-shun
Szt Ms Meena DATWANI
R SCREMHA 4 Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
- BEEFBBSAKF#L Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
A% 2 Members:
EiAN=g Ms Phoebe TSE Siu-ling
HEHZ T Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han

EHNMFEERFENER(BE) HEAE

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing

(Housing) or her representative

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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Disciplinary Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To draw up guidelines and procedures to ensure consistency and
fairness in handling disciplinary cases.

To receive, consider and inquire into complaints as mentioned
in section 29(1) of the EAO and submissions by the CEO as
mentioned in section 29(2) of the EAQ that are referred by the EAA
to the Committee, and to conduct such inquiry as the Committee
may think fit after having considered such complaints and
submissions.

To receive and inquire into complaints lodged against licensed
estate agents or salespersons for breaches of the Code of Ethics,
practice circulars or guidelines issued to the trade from time to
time by the EAA.

To consider the reports and recommendations of the investigator
appointed by the EAA under section 28 of the EAO, with referral
by the Section 28 Investigation Committee, to look into suspected
and alleged breaches or non-compliance of the provisions of the
EAQO and to conduct such inquiry as the Committee may think fit
after having considered such reports and recommendations.

To exercise any of the disciplinary powers provided under section
30 of the EAO as the Committee considers appropriate.

To attach to licences such conditions as the Committee may
consider appropriate.

To refer from time to time cases of malpractice or complaints
considered by the Committee to other committees for formulation
and/or revision of policies, practice or regulations for better
discharge of the EAA’s functions.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the
Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee Chairman
may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to
make recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to the
exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and when
the Committee considers necessary.
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Membership (as at 31 March 2022):

F & Chairman: BERERE Mr CHOW Wai-shun
B 2 T F2AM Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning
SREE AT ARt Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP
P XCHIEMHA 4t Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
B #F % £ SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM Mr LAl Man-hin, SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM
ME R A T4t Professor Nelson LAM Chi-yuen, JP
EEEERKEM Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
A& Members: FOKNSBSAF AL Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
EEERA Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
EEREE Mr TSOI Chi-chung
HEEL T Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
HEBEMHA T+ Mr Addy WONG Wai-hung, MH, JP
RE L EMH Mr YU Chi-wing, MH
®wRZ =t Ms Helen ZEE
2B E Mr BUT Sun-wai
PRI BN S A Mr Armond CHAN Yiu-kwok
SRS Mr Earnest CHEUNG Wai-ho
fAISEE A 2 RMMHA T8 L Sr Vincent HO Kui-yip, MH, JP
R4zt Ms Helle KWAN Bik-hung
2R EliES S Ms Sandia LAU Ying-lam
Soard-apponied LR E A Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming
Members:
BRERLE Mr Michael LIU Kin-wa
REMEAEE Mr Luke NG Kai-man
EEREE Mr Philip POON Chi-ho
H MLz Ms Joanna TSE Hoi-lam
RS LT Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
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Licensing Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

10.

To consider and recommend licensing requirements for estate
agents and salespersons.

To consider and recommend the criteria for exemption from the
licensing requirements for any particular class of persons.

To instruct the EAA Administration to process applications for
licences/statements of particulars of business (“SPOBs”) and to
grant or renew such licences/SPOBs to applicants meeting the
licensing requirements.

To consider and if thought appropriate, to approve or refuse
applications for licences/SPOBs brought before the Committee.

To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA’s functions and
powers under sections 17, 23, 24, 25 and 27 of the EAO and
section 9 of the Estate Agents (Licensing) Regulation.

To set policies relating to licensing matters.

To review and make recommendations on the scale of licence fees
and charges for services provided by the EAA.

To consider and design the relevant forms and related documents
pertaining to licensing matters.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the
Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee Chairman
may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to
make recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to the
exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and when
the Committee considers necessary.
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Membership (as at 31 March 2022):

F & Chairman: EiAN 3 e Ms Phoebe TSE Siu-ling
B 2 T 2D Ir Albert CHENG Ting-ning
SR AT ARt Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP

X #F S 4SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM
MWERBIRAFAL

Mr LAl Man-hin, SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM

X B Members: Professor Nelson LAM Chi-yuen, JP

E=aplAR Tt Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
RE L EMH Mr YU Chi-wing, MH
Bt Ms Helen ZEE

EXEEE Mr Eddie LOU Kuong-fai

ZEKE

. BABRZT(CEBEZEERK)
Board-appointed

Ms Vera TAM Sau-ngor
(representative of Consumer Council)

Members:
RS LT Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
HEREAETSE Practice and Examination Committee
B1EEE - Terms of Reference:
1. HIE] » wa &I~ HEH 1. To draw up, review and revise code(s) of ethics governing the

ERBEITERORTRIETR -

conduct and practice of the estate agency trade.

2. MR <<i1ﬂF1t1§'@fl7k1ﬁ\J>>Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂg?{t 2. To review and make recommendations on the regulations under
T8 2 OB ER IR - W R iRt the EAO relating to the practice and operation of estate agents.
s -

3. THEHZENGIHERIBITENS X 3.  To consider and review practices within the trade and prepare or

Fik o WHIFTeSFERBENERET consider practice circulars or other guidelines on various aspects
VERY N 2 mEskiEa] - of estate agency work from time to time.

4, BEERZEFRBITHERRIEO) R EH 4. To monitor compliance of the EAO and its subsidiary legislations,
BYAf - GRSFSFR)) - smEmEsE code(s) of ethics, practice circulars or other guidelines; and to
HIESIMIE N + WEEARER - KR liaise with the trade on ways to improve the standard of practice
RIBAMFKERRBEZN X - and quality of service.

5. #HEFTHEREBMNZSEEELREANES 5.  To determine the syllabi and fees for the qualifying examinations
BENER - for estate agents and salespersons.

6. AEREIAMBITIIERETAEL - 6. To set the parameters for the administration of the qualifying

examinations.

7. EEEBRERE[ANSBHRHFTHFRE . E 7. To oversee and give direction to the EAA Administration in

HEREARNNEERRTE - WHLLL
[ E BTTIERFI B HES] -

the setting and moderation of examination questions and
determination of penalties for breaches of examination regulations
by candidates.
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Membership (as at 31 March 2022):

10.

To review and determine the pass marks and commendation
marks for the qualifying examinations and, where appropriate,
those for each part thereof.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the
Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee Chairman
may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to
make recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating to the
exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers as and when
the Committee considers necessary.

FEfE Chairman: B HBEMHA 4+ Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
BlE% EEMZ T Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
Vice-Chairman:
SR = B AT AR Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP
FE{ERE Mr CHOW Wai-shun
BEgt+ Ms Meena DATWANI
ME BRI F 4+ Professor Nelson LAM Chi-yuen, JP
EEEERKEM Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
B Mombers: K NHSBSA T4+ Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP
EEE A Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang
gEBEE Mr TSOI Chi-chung
HEEL T Ms Angela WONG Ching-yi
EHEEMHAR 4+ Mr Addy WONG Wai-hung, MH, JP

BRkFEREEFWER(BE) RARRK

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Housing) or her representative

RIEESTAE
IR {AT4E 2B S AMH A SF 48+
Board-appointed ZRERYE S
Members: 25 48 o e

ERIBLE

Mr Earnest CHEUNG Wai-ho
Sr Vincent HO Kui-yip, MH, JP
Mr Victor LAl Kin-fai

Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming

Mr YIP Yiu-pong
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Professional Development Committee

Terms of Reference:

1.

To examine the training needs and design appropriate training
programmes to raise the competence of licensees.

To oversee the implementation of the Continuing Professional
Development (“CPD”) Scheme including:

a. conducting periodic reviews on its focus, scope and
requirements;

b.  determining guidelines for assigning Compliance and
Effective Management and All-round Advancement activities;

C. approving CPD activity providers and evaluating CPD
activities;

d.  adopting appropriate CPD activities of other professions and
trades into the CPD Scheme of the EAA; and

e.  monitoring the effectiveness of the CPD Scheme and making
recommendations to the Board as appropriate.

To advise on professional exchange activities and monitor the
administration of scheme(s) relating to reciprocal recognition of
professional qualifications for the estate agency trade.

To set up a task force as may from time to time be directed
by the Committee Chairman, comprising any member(s) of the
Committee, to carry out such tasks as the Committee Chairman
may assign; to deliberate on the findings of the task force; and to
make recommendations to the Board for approval as appropriate.

To obtain such legal and/or expert advice as the Committee may

consider necessary for or in relation to the proper discharge and
exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers.
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Membership (as at 31 March 2022):

=% Chairman: ULt

Ms Meena DATWANI

E5F 2 TA2AM

B 45 4 SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM

B G RREM
FEIKHSBSA T4+
EEESLE

& & Members: mAER g E
EREMHA F i+
REREEMH
RE% L

EHNMFEERTENER(BE) HHERE

Ir Albert CHEUNG Ting-ning

Mr LAl Man-hin, SBS, FSDSM, FSMSM
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP

Mr Jacob POON Tat-hang

Mr TSOI Chi-chung

Mr Addy WONG Wai-hung, MH, JP

Mr YU Chi-wing, MH

Ms Helen ZEE

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Housing) or her representative

oL
SR E HEEME
Board-appointed T BB EMH
Members: HERELL BEIHRBRER)

Dr Lennon H.T. CHOY
Mr lvan IP Kwok-hung
Dr Lawrance WONG Dun-king, MH

Ms Venus WONG Szee Ving (representative of
Vocational Training Council)

R HFERTE

Meetings attendance

pick ((iﬂg;‘gﬁﬁ &H)y  EEEREHIETE According to the EAQ, the quorum for a meeting of the EAA shall be at

ABELVREERERKE AN —F (8
EEFEIEER(PTRESHET) - HFE
ENEERKESE —ZIRER# -

least half of the members of the EAA for the time being (including the
Chairman and the Vice-chairman whether present or not). Each member
of the EAA present at a meeting thereof shall have a vote.
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The number of meetings, average attendance rates and number of
papers considered by the EAA Board and standing committees in
2021/22 were as follows:

SHYE

Number of

PR

Average

RERNIHHE
Number of papers
considered

meetings held attendance rate*

*

The attendance of committees includes Board members and Board-appointed
members.

** Notwithstanding that the Disciplinary Committee did not hold any meetings in the
year, Board members and Board-appointed members of the Disciplinary Committee
held inquiry hearings on 315 cases in 46 sessions to adjudicate the alleged non-
compliances of licensees; whereas the Preliminary Scrutiny Panel of the Committee
considered and approved 295 papers submitted by the CEO with respect to inquiry
hearings.

Notwithstanding that the Professional Development Committee did not hold any
meetings in the year, the CPD Endorsement Panel of the Committee considered
16 papers and endorsed a total of 111 training activities meriting adoption into the
EAA’s CPD Scheme.
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Integrity and Impartiality

Standard of conduct

The EAA is fully committed to the principles of honesty, integrity and fair
play in the delivery of its services to the public.

The EAA is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
All Board members and employees of the EAA are regarded as “public
servants” for the purpose of that ordinance.

As a statutory body tasked with regulating the practice of the estate
agency trade in Hong Kong, the EAA strives to maintain the highest
possible level of quality service and ethical standards. To promote and
maintain public confidence, all EAA staff are required to have a high
standard of integrity and conduct. They are required to comply with the
EAA’s Code of Conduct which sets out in detail the basic standards of
conduct in different aspects, including confidentiality, conflicts of interest
and acceptance of advantages. All EAA staff are briefed on the Code
of Conduct upon their commencement of duty at the EAA, and may
access the document easily at any time through the EAA’s intranet.

The post-employment sanitisation period for the CEO, Directors, Senior
Managers and Managers are respectively one year, six months and
two months. There is also a prohibition on all staff, including the CEO
and Directors, to take the estate agents or salespersons qualifying
examinations during service and within two months after service.
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Disclosure of interest

To foster public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the EAA,
the EAA adopts a two-tier reporting system on declaration of interest as
a safeguard against potential conflict of interest. All Board members and
Board-appointed members are required to register their interests with
the EAA upon their appointment to membership and annually thereafter.
They are also required to declare their interests at all EAA meetings
in any subject and matter under consideration by the EAA, and any
conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest which they may have
with the affairs of the EAA. The register of interests is available for public
inspection.

In addition, all EAA staff also have to declare annually if they have any
direct or indirect financial interest in any company or organisation which
competes with the EAA, which the EAA has business dealings with, or
which is being regulated by the EAA.

Regarding interests in land and property, all EAA Board members and
Board-appointed members are required to declare any such beneficial
interests they have in or outside Hong Kong, without disclosing details
of the addresses of such land or property. Registrable interests include
land or property owned by a member in his/her name or held indirectly
through another company or person. It also includes land or property
which a member has a right over its disposition or has any pecuniary
interest deriving from it. The managerial staff of the EAA Administration
are also required to follow a similar requirement in declaring their
interests in land and property.
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Accountability and Transparency

The EAA considers accountability one of the fundamental pillars
of corporate governance and has built its corporate structure and
management culture based on this concept. Under the current structure,
the Board is accountable for the overall performance of the EAA. The
EAA Administration is responsible for managing the EAA’s everyday
business and is accountable to the Board for its performance.

Corporate Authorisation Manual

To maintain a high standard of accountability, a Corporate Authorisation
Manual was formulated for the EAA to provide corporate management
authority guidelines. All members of the EAA, standing committees,
work groups/panels and all staff must act in compliance with the spirit
and intent of the Corporate Authorisation Manual and within the scope
of authorities therein conferred.

Access to information

To facilitate the public to access information about the EAA, the EAA
has designated the Director of Services and Professional Development
as the Access to Information Officer who is responsible for ensuring that
requests for access to information under the EAA’s Code on Access
to Information are properly dealt with in accordance with specific
procedures.

EERBREREY  MEHR EENARKEED -
EERTYRBILETRIBMRE  MARENERE
EROTIERERERT -

The public are kept abreast of the EAA’s work and
initiatives through various communication channels, such
as media events, press releases, publicity and public
education activities, EAA publications and its website.
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ERENAFERE
Summary of Applications for Access to Information

HEHE BEER
No of Application

ERER

Tor Information Requested
Applications Outcome

h& AR Bl
Copies of licences
FR 5 h PR SR 22 ) R A%
Forms submitted for licence applications

R FA A5 hE PR B IE S A B2 I B R S
PEpEE

20 Documentary proofs of academic qualifications
All accepted

submitted for licence applications

R IR R M EA B R

Personal data submitted for licence application

DESH N Saal: 0 P

Letter to a licensee

[ AR Bl AR

Copies of licences

FRRR M IR R R M RAR

Forms submitted for licence applications

i REES
= U B 5 2 SR

All accepted B REEZ A EA SR

Personal data submitted for licence application

FR 55 18 PR IRF IR 22 ) 2 R S8 A S A
Documentary proofs of academic qualifications

submitted for licence application

fERR R

Copies of licences

BB RERERZ ARG

B Forms submitted for licence applications
12188 %

e AR R <x e BE
12 accepted B AR E R LA B R
13 Personal data submitted for licence application

FR A R AR 2 ) B2 R R8BS 1
Documentary proofs of academic qualifications

submitted for licence application

1EER ERMERE AR
1 declined Information requested already published

s
Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22 45




wisEn

Corporate Governance

EEREBRMERHERNRERN T
treERE - MERRERRRRERS
() - WRETEEAE - W —HiR
BABEWE  ARTRETRMEER
RIS -

EEREBARERY FEHE EEMRQ
FHEERY RERTYEBUETRE
BRE MARBENAREERNIER
HIERIE R ©

DL EMMER

RITBRBATEZLREZESRBGE
I GRBI) BT B0 15 BERF R A SRR 5
EAE R R REEETLEMANGER
INERBEHERBEARARAER  BER
REMBIEA N RITAER -

LEREEE 2021/22 FEHERT 318
B EZHMER - EERBELERNE
RREZBEAIHNLEHAER]I NS
BARAT e

AR - B8 B IVEE BN AT R R HR
BERIRE - IE B LM AEE ] E 5
R AETM SRR -

B R e

SMEP R

EEE BRI TSR KR A AN BN A% -
2021/22 BIEE - 1B e =R A 2 ETED
THEREZIE BEEE RRAZEED -

INBEZNFEENERNEZRRRESE
BEEMBHRE  2TRAAMNBILIRE -
EEREIMNINDZEMERER NER
BREIE - BEHAEEFE =R TR
TEZXE 2021/22 EE B LB RE K&
PERERAFINE 1102144 B »

The transparency of the EAA’s work is attained through the information
published at its website and is further enhanced by furnishing an Annual
Report to the Secretary for Transport and Housing, copies of which have
to be laid before the Legislative Council and are made available to the
public at the EAA’s office and website.

Members of the public are also kept abreast of the EAA’s work and
initiatives through various communication channels, such as media
events, press releases, publicity and public education activities, EAA
publications and its website.

Publication of inquiry hearing results

The EAA publishes inquiry hearing results on its website to facilitate
members of the public to ascertain the results of the inquiry hearings
conducted by the Disciplinary Committee pursuant to powers under the
EAOQ on disciplinary matters concerning licensees or ex-licensees, and to
educate both the estate agency trade and the public.

The Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 318 inquiry hearing cases in
2021/22 and the EAA has published the inquiry hearing results of these
cases on its webpage titled “Recent Inquiry Hearing Results”.

The EAA also publishes the reasons for disciplinary decisions on its
website. For details, please refer to the sub-section headed “Publication
of reasons for the decisions of inquiry hearings” under the section
headed “Proactive in Law Enforcement”.

Independent Checks and Balances

External audit

The EAA’s financial statements are subject to audit by an external
auditor. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu continued to be the EAA’s external
auditor in the financial year of 2021/22.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent
assurance to the Board that the annual financial statements of the
EAA are fairly stated. The appointment of the EAA’s external auditor
is subject to the approval of the Secretary for Transport and Housing.
The Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements of 2021/22
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are included in pages 110 to 144.
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Appeals

Under the EAQ, licensees or licence applicants may appeal against
the EAA’s decisions concerning refusal to grant or renew a licence, or
its disciplinary sanctions by writing to the Secretary for Transport and
Housing.

The Secretary for Transport and Housing is required to appoint a panel
of persons for the purpose of hearing such appeals. The appeals are
determined by a tribunal, the members of which are appointed by the
Chairman of the panel from members of the panel.

The Ombudsman’s review

The EAA came under the jurisdiction of the Ombudsman on 2 July 2010.
In the year of 2021/22, a total of two inquiries from the Ombudsman
were received. All of them were unsubstantiated and closed.

Performance Pledges

As a responsible public body, the EAA has a set of performance pledges
for its services to the public and the attainment level of the pledges is
reviewed regularly. All sections of the EAA Administration are responsible
for maintaining effective internal controls to monitor the achievement of
their pledges to the public.

Achievement of the Performance Pledges in 2021/22

=M
Enquiries

R %5 3851

Service type

mEEH
Response to enquiries

iE 2 b

Standard Results

BiEEABEAR) MEIZERA! 1009
Telephone enquiries (voice mail messages) Within 1 working day’ °
ZHEH 7RI {ERA?

99.26%

Written enquiries

Within 7 working days?®

! BEERMIERAEH—ZEN -

2 YR ERET —EIERRGHE

' The EAA’s working days are from Monday to Friday.

2 From the next working day following the receipt of the enquiry.
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Qualifying Examinations

R #5385

EE

Service type

BB AE

Issue result slips’

Standard
EZHRBMI4ETIERR

Within 14 working days after the examination

R ER
Licensing

AR5 35!

Service type

Results

EE
Standard

BRIR AT IR R W B3 R FE 12 9101 THER 92 99,989
Process new licence applications Within 10 working days for new applications? e
BRIRENR R E WS|4 h FR 55 12 B0 20 B TIER A 99.99%
Process renewal licence applications Within 20 working days for renewal applications e
RRT AR RS HUR IR R R B B 35
. o o 10fE TR Py°
Refund of application fees for rejected/ - ) 99.82%
L Within 10 working days®
cancelled applications

! HEEREENEREHNNBREIRESE
BB

2 AEERWZMRRE AEBERRXHZT
—ETERES - ZBLMR/ EXEFEHA
& (BeRRATHER 2 B) BLE - IRREAFEA
RHEERMREEGERABARENA)
EMEE NEIREREMBEENK - IR
BRATER - BT BRI AR AR
ARREARE=E (PIMBEEERE - FEA
SEBR) ERBMAE  FRAIEER 7
PURTEHAESRIER RS - UL EEREBERT -
FEEERNOKH -

¢ AEUHMIERRAFC T —EIERET 118
REEZ - AIRREIRNEEEERETAET
Z N —ETERERT ©

Issued by the Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge of the Vocational
Training Council, authorised by the EAA to administer the examinations.

2 From the next working day following the receipt of an application, the required fee

and documents to the day the licence/statement of particulars of business is issued
(i.e. the day the licence is available for collection). This service target does not
apply to applications which require the EAA’s Licensing Committee to determine
whether the applicant fulfills the “fit and proper” requirement and other licensing
requirements as prescribed under the EAO. A longer duration is needed for such
cases for the EAA to make enquiries and for the applicant or any third party (such
as the Official Receiver’s Office, trustees-in-bankruptcy or the Police) to respond
before the EAA approves or rejects the application.

3 From the next working day after an application is cancelled or rejected; for

bankruptcy cases, from the next working day following the receipt of instructions
from the Official Receiver’s Office or the trustee-in-bankruptcy.
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B~ ITBI RN

Complaints, Enforcement and Disciplinary Proceedings

R #5351

Service type

EE
Standard

RUENEF AR B E IR

SETERR

100%
Acknowledge receipt of written complaints Within 5 working days ’
W B RSB SR AR AR ATEE EE 178
- , - : 15E TR
Provide a written response to complainants upon 97.79%

receipt of sufficient supporting documents

Within 15 working days

EITE RS ER GE
PEE : IHHEL %giﬁﬁéﬁ’é&fﬂ o]2

BERMEMER),NEERBAELHEARNERFHECERRN

SRR (EZR)!

Conduct the first disciplinary inquiry hearing for Normal Cases and Complex Cases/Publish admitted breach(es) on EAA website

for Fast Track Cases'’

[Note: Not all cases will proceed to disciplinary actions.] ?

PR AR

(WEREDFEEIT i XAE LA EANEZR)
Fast Track Cases

(Cases dealt with under the New Scheme for
Disciplinary Cases and involving no witnesses)

SEPEIAR

Within 6 calendar months®

71.43%*

BEERZAT RERNCGUERIZE) KE
MIEED 2 RERTESENE - URERIE
N B 2 R o WA RS REAR S
ETOMERE  mEMEERER T EEE
FRETHERRERD - RIARB AL
TER e

2 RFARSEFIEASEATHREED RN
BN ERAEBERDETLRED  REE
ZRBEAR  EBERRCEAN  EREEZ
OB AR

¢ AEEREEEATUTHRABFAFELE
ECENES s (ERZERFA)HEE
Eﬁx&xhﬁi‘.ﬂ-/\%’*ﬁjEﬂﬁéﬁﬂhiﬁﬁ’ﬂéﬁﬁ’]EI
H > BEEERCEVHOFR AN ERR SR
ERMEREZR) - HOARNERFENREE
BREAMNEHERNRERESR)

fMFRREFER - 75R EEER RSO E M EZ
Ix2019mﬂ7§ SRBNRRIETEMARRLE
BPRMGAEGE - ZBHIE  BERRRTAERT

T’EEI’J;z?JF BRI B R Tp#E KAk o iR
LA o

The EAA’s investigation generally focuses on the compliance of the EAO and its
subsidiary legislation and the conduct of estate agents and salespersons in their
estate agency practice. If a case is related to any parallel investigation of criminal
offence or non-compliance with any law or regulation by other regulatory bodies,
or if the case is related to any parallel civil court action, this performance pledge is
inapplicable.

2 A written notification of whether the case will be recommended for disciplinary

action will be given to the complainant(s) and the licensee(s) concerned within 3
calendar months for Fast Track Cases, within 6 calendar months for Normal Cases,
or within 9 calendar months for Complex Cases.

8 Commences from the date of the EAA’s written response to complainant(s)

upon the receipt of sufficient supporting documents from them or (if there is

no complainant) from the date of the EAA’s first allegation letter to licensee(s)
concerned to the date of the first disciplinary inquiry hearing for cases proceeding
to an inquiry hearing for Normal Cases and Complex Cases or to the publication
date of admitted breach(es) on EAA’s website for Fast Track Cases.

4 Two fast track cases, 75 normal cases and 80 complex cases did not meet the

pledge amidst the outbreak of the fifth wave of the pandemic during the year.
During the time, the EAA implemented a work-from-home arrangement which
resulted in extra time needed for completion of investigation and the adjournment of
some inquiry hearings.
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PR % %8 51
Service type

HEE BRI RDEA MR ARFAELE
EEENHS - S EZREERFA) HEE
RIAFEFSEAZ L BT ERREENEFE
B BEEER %Efiﬁﬂﬂﬁ’lﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ(ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’\iﬁ
1I$5FD%’§%E1I%?) HEAREER BRI EE
AfnE) A H GEARREEZ) -

SAABRIGAHGET 5 - LA B ERDETTAC A
IR HIR—YIFEEEE BATEEIE RN IER - 10
Ao ERTER AR R AR AT R B i R B
HER L EFHORFA - BAR R
FRARELFEERLENAE - EENEI
RS2 AR RS Az

FREMEZ - 755R BB AR RSOREFM(EZE
Ix2019mﬁkf§ﬁ%£})§f%?&%ﬁﬁﬂiéﬁi
BRRMAGE - ZBR IR - BEERERMTERT
f’EEI‘Bz%‘F AR ERTR S LA

HERLEH -

MBSz R RNEERAZRER
@%ﬁiﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁ*%é% D JrilJTﬁ
BABEZR - BILARBIR R A HFAER
HEZ Bt e

BREAZBITLEETHNRFESR - AR
E EERIABBRAERHIEA21RA -
LR TE LA S T3 A R B N SZORTE A1
EVERIEMAL

ER EE®R
Standard Results
1018 A A2
42.75%°

Within 10 calendar months'?

13 A A2

o 42.03%°
Within 13 calendar months'?
10fE TIERMA*

o ) 96.91%
Within 10 working days*
10fE TIERA°

100%

Within 10 working days®

1

2

4

Commences from the date of the EAA’s written response to complainant(s) upon
receipt of sufficient supporting documents from them or (if there is no complainant)
from the date of the EAA’s first allegation letter to licensee(s) concerned to the date
of the first disciplinary inquiry hearing for cases proceeding to an inquiry hearing for
Normal Cases and Complex Cases or to the publication date of admitted breach(es)
on EAA’s website for Fast Track Cases.

Situations out of the EAA’s control, such as no inquiry hearing date is available
after the case is ready for inquiry hearing or the unavailability of complainant(s),
witness(es) and/or the licensee(s) concerned on the purported inquiry hearing date
after the case is ready for inquiry hearing etc., are disregarded for the purpose of
this performance pledge.

Two fast track cases, 75 normal cases and 80 complex cases did not meet the
pledge amidst the outbreak of the fifth wave of the pandemic during the year.
During the time, the EAA implemented a work-from-home arrangement which
resulted in extra time needed for completion of investigation and the adjournment of
some inquiry hearings.

From completion of investigation or, in the event the case is submitted for an inquiry
hearing or dealt with under the New Scheme for Disciplinary Cases, the date of the
letter notifying the complainee of the result of the hearing.

Excludes cases that have to be submitted for inquiry hearings. For the latter, the
statutory requirement is for the EAA to “within the period of 21 days beginning
on the date of the relevant decision, to notify in writing the licensee and any other
person against whom the decision is made of the decision”.
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BFEEREETE
Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”)

PR % %8 5 Eit: ZEx

Service type Standard Results
SER R B R S SIE BRI R R
- HESEEERDE 5 20 THER P
Process applications for endorsement of CPD o ) 100%

_ Within 20 working days

activities
BEHHFEEES | T2NEE RERMNFESSE
HEETEBHFFRRA BOETVERIA 1009
Issue certificates of attendance for EAA-organised | Within 30 working days ’
CPD activities

>
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The EAA Administration

ESEET
Organisation and People

Organisation structure

ITRARE

Chief Executive Officer

HATHE
Director of Operations

BB

Complaints

1TENER

Enforcement

REREAREE
Director of Regulatory
Affairs & General Counsel

AR AR

Disciplinary Proceedings

EREBREA
Legal Services &
Examination

R EREB

Licensing

BRI R E 3 RAAEE
Director of Services &
Professional Development

HEBEMS EERNER
Corporate Communications/
Board Secretariat

B35 R AT AR

Finance & Administration

ANEIFE

Human Resources

ERREREIE DI
IT & Data Analysis

EEBRAM

Professional Development
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BEEG LI THE TR
Non-directorate staff establishment

L S

Rank Number

18

21

12

28
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The EAA Administration

EEER
Management team

@ AT EEBOL SR TS B NEL LT
Q 1 Q Mr CHAN U Keng, Ms Elvina LEE,

Director of Operations Manager (Enforcement)
RENAREERER LT B RS R BUR 1 3R = AR A ER
Ms Juliet LEUNG, MREFLE
Director of Regulatory Affairs Mr LAM Ka Man,

? n and General Counsel Senior Manager

(IT and Data Analysis)

PR M BB RAE T AR A

Mr lvan WONG, @ WREANERCEREEM L+
@ TR B TR 2+ Director of Services Ms Anissa CHENG,
Ms Ruby HON, and Professional Development Senior Manager
Chief Executive Officer (Corporate Communications)
@ EEEmMA B L
@ B RITHDEEFER/EE Ms Jennifer YUNG, @ RS EMCEEMEL+
Mr Danny MA, Legal Counsel Ms Ivy LEE,
Head (Complaints and Enforcement) Senior Manager (Licensing)
EXEREPLIBRAKR LT
@ REERRRA L Ms Fallon LEUNG, MR RITRSERCIBERS L+
Mr YK LEUNG, Manager Ms Wendy POON,
Legal Counsel (Professional Development) Senior Manager
(Finance and Administration)
@ FREHBREABEBEFNEL LT
Ms Grace LI, @ PRI IE /N £
Manager Ms Christine CHONG,
(Legal Services and Examination) Manager (Complaints)
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BT REM

BT
EERITHEPIRITHRAREE - HBaE
BREEEEEREN  URERKAEHE
RBF(HENREGEH) - H 2 2022 F 3
A3 B EERBEREHLBI07HET -
BEREEGREEHE 1% -

i

EEREHRNFIMER - ARRABH
MEFNTAETHEEY  LEER TR
FHUAESIRBEAS - KRR T HL
BRRREFAETHIMKE RBEHE -
WRIETIZ/KFFHEFHFMELE - M 2022 F
EEXFHBNOFMHABBENRE TR
FARIMZEZEMET °

P 1T B A8 A48 B 1 B

REF XN FITRAATAEE R F B ' a0
T

Staffing and remuneration
Staffing

The EAA Administration is led by the Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for managing the business of the EAA, and monitoring
and supervising compliance with the Estate Agents Ordinance. As at
31 March 2022, the staff establishment was 107. The percentage of
employees with disabilities was 1%.

Remuneration

The EAA regularly reviews its remuneration policy to ensure that
its remuneration packages are in line with the market trends, so as
to maintain competitiveness in attracting and retaining talent. An
independent consultant was commissioned to conduct a pay level and
pay trend survey during the year. The pay ranges were revised in line
with the market and the 2022 annual performance-linked pay adjustment
also drew reference from the recormmendations of the consultant.

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Directors during the
year

The total remuneration’ of the Chief Executive Officer and Directors
during the year was as follows:

N
Number of
individuals
1,500,001-2,000,0007T $1,500,001 to $2,000,000 3
3,000,001-3,500,0007T $3,000,001 to $3,500,000 1
wmey Total 4

! BEEHWERMNBEFAZNNES - LW
& REFSHBEREE ER)

! Total remuneration includes salary, contract-end gratuity and performance-
linked pay, if applicable, paid during the year.
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The EAA Administration

BN BE
ETHIRERE

FEEARHAERBNHEEMERAE Z
HEEAEE  EERLABRRARET
HipETERE  BROERZIEZE A
REARK - ARMERRIRIGKFHEEN © 1F
REABANERRRZ — BEERMNIE
HEBER : BRABITEY - HINLE
AR MIEAIE RS - UIRFTE T TE
RRARFHEINERER -

ERABAR EERNBTIRUNILE
SRBEEEARERM - BRRI - K
REBERBAZRNBEBEET AR
BET MERERABEMBNRETET -

HREEREISRTHUTRBMHERS -
EFRRREITIERN ERAATINMRAR -
B B R BARR - OB - &R
BRIEELEEBRINENZAREE - B
TIRAEERETIRNSERER - EE
BABEMBE NN  RBRFEREE
HENEERAAGRE T REEEEN
T o

AN ABRIKEBE T2 MER T ER
FAR IS BIGRAE - DABNSR MBI TR T Ay
AHELEREASTRERBE -

Training and communication
Staff training and development

With rising public expectations on the accountability and transparency of
public organisations, the EAA needs to ensure that its staff are equipped
with the necessary competencies to discharge their duties, respond to
the community’s evolving needs, and achieve consistently high levels
of performance. As part of its human resources strategy, the EAA is
committed to providing various kinds of resources, including in-house
workshops, external training programmes and training sponsorship to
enhance their competencies and support their career development.

Being employees of a public body, EAA staff should possess a high
level of awareness on corruption prevention and flawless integrity. For
this purpose, the ICAC was invited to deliver a talk to all new staff and
current staff to refresh their knowledge.

As EAA staff need to deal with different stakeholders including working
partners, trade and the public every day, the ability to build rapport,
listen with patience, de-escalate tension and manage stress is important.
To enhance EAA staff’'s capability in handling demanding customers as
well as handling their own emotion and stress, a counselling psychologist
was engaged to conduct a workshop for the frontline staff during the
year.

Staff were also provided with sponsorship for attending their self-initiated
training programmes to enhance their knowledge at work and to meet
individual career development goals.

EEREI2H[NMESTNRAFTENER]T
s -

The EAA staff participated in the workshop of
“To Handle Demanding Customers”.
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FAERIEDHEHERAEEREINER
FBAEE - B PIEREAT R - AR
B & B AR PRE AR -

S—HH  EERTELETING LEE -
FFRITE 2019 BAA RS RRIBEE - BT K
KBLPEIINES - EERBEEAE TLH
TS TS — B ORI R EMRIIER
LA A P TIERAER IuE BRI Al 2%
BE) o

AET#E
B REATREERMNSEE T 2R

B RRECHRTEREeR MM
—HEERSEIBPINERE RS KIET
EMERIER  ANBEREERHHEE
EEEBANET - SRETEENSER
TEHREREE (PSR EHEE T -
NEEBREEBSEE LENEIAERK
RITE - BIANESE BRI ST 8] R R
BE . WIRHHEEETHRER -

All these training activities aim to enhance the professional knowledge
and skills of the EAA staff, to develop their full potential and to prepare
them for greater challenges and achievements ahead.

On the other hand, the EAA also cares about the physical well-being of
its staff especially during the COVID-19 pandemic when they have less
outdoor activities. The EAA had arranged two workshops respectively on
resistance band exercise and towel exercise for staff so that they could
do more exercises at work and at home.

EEREPMSENEREMNRINRIIED - ASE
BIERVEHEZHEES) -

EAA organised two training workshops on resistance
band exercise and towel exercise to motivate staff to
do more exercises at home amid the pandemic.

Staff communication

The EAA reinforces communication among staff through different
channels, including regular meetings among management staff
and sectional meetings, horizontally to ensure transparency and
understanding of the work of different sections and vertically to convey
direction to different rankings of staff. The senior management further
regularly reaches out to staff through various communication sessions,
such as the sectional briefing sessions to share the latest message and
direction from the senior management on matters such as the EAA’s
corporate plan and organisational changes, as well as to provide a
platform for the staff to share their views.
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RIEEEGREN  EERNFRRITTET
BT/A%  wBIRITRFEERTES -

To foster team spirit, staff activities, e.g. staff outing and annual
Christmas lunch, were arranged during the year.

RIEBEEKES  EERRNFEANRETRMT BITIRTT
REFEIFE -
EAA arranged staff outing and Christmas lunch to foster
team spirit during the year.

RTRABTIHEARENRL  EER
2T 05 @ B@ETIERIAE - &at
ZRMtiEEm AR ANEREMEKRIER -
HEERE TERQECEREARBR o

HIERET#E
wEEE

EEREECFETEL SRS ER
[RIOREIEIRER  UWRBABEIBEERL
| [BAERES ] RIRIRRE ) EAAGEM

EERRFBAEREEBEIBEFRIA
FTE| ZRERAEASEFIRERTE
SRR o

To increase colleagues’ health awareness, the EAA participated in the
Joyful@Healthy workplace programme and was provided with health
check devices on blood pressure and waist measurement for our staff to
use them in the office to keep track of their personal health.

Corporate and staff awards
Corporate awards

The EAA received the Caring Organisation logo for the seventh
consecutive year presented by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of the EAA’s commitment and contribution to “Caring

for the Community”, “Caring for the Employees” and “Caring for the
Environment”.

The EAA was also acknowledged as a “Manpower Developer” again
by the Employees Retraining Board for its outstanding achievements in
manpower training and development.
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ETH#E

EE RO —(IRRE T E N — (I RFFEB
BRIREMIE[2021 RFZEERAE R
BB ARG PIEIRF AR IE
BRALERATHMNEXREGREE - &F
REIEKEE - FRHAERFLON -

NEIE

ARIEZIBEERA R - 7£ 2021/22 FE
BATHEEZEME TER TIEM I
T BB ERINER  SHHUREE
NET UEBREBERSE - MEMHRE
MM EFNEEER  BIEERE TR
FEAEERRAZANESEREANIT
HWILOEITI 815 URERAZHE
AMVBEZEFRE FOEE - FEEINEGZ
WRAEERE - I KFIAE TR
R RSB M ESERE -

EERERRRINE —PHNHRER-
2022 F 2 A A £ 2022 F 4 A 4
Omicron (B EFEHHE - ABREEFTA
REFRIREEMN - WAENEME B
FFEe BEMEBERG B HRE
EEERBRATINNOKERRN - #iFAA
FREEARE - Z—HmE - BEAAK
SRR EHETT o

g JEI)

WARMAX

EE RN AFEHS 1,330 BtA&% (HEL
EFE1F 1,350 BILERH) - EEREAF
EREIKRA A 9,310 Bt » & - FE 18
180 BTk 2.0% ° AFEHAMAWAEB K
B EERAFEARREEBREEDN
REVFFRIE 120 E7oim T AR - BA KU
KT EBYFIE 30 BT - MELEE B
R AR Y E B 8IT8 T AR IR EH &
BIFEMEEN—HPAY - AFEN
X &8,140 Byt M EF/EE N 360 &
TLEK 4.7% °

Staff awards

An Officer of the Licensing Section and an Assistant Manager of the
Complaints Section received“The Ombudsmans Award 2021 for“Officers
of Public Organisations” in recognition of their professional and positive
attitude in serving the public and handling complaints and enquiries. This
was the seventh consecutive year that the EAA staff have received the
Award.

Combating COVID-19

To reduce risk of the spread of COVID-19, a roster arrangement for
colleagues to work from home was implemented from time to time when
necessary during the year of 2021/22. Meetings were held online in
lieu of physical attendance to prevent cross infection. Other preventive
measures such as requiring both staff and visitors to conduct body
temperature checks and scan the LeaveHomeSafe QR Code before
entry to the EAA office, as well as wearing a face mask within the office
at all times, were also implemented throughout the year. Frequency of
office cleaning was also increased. Besides, rapid antigen test kits and
antibacterial spray were provided to staff.

The EAA’s precautionary measures were escalated with the closure of
the reception/service counter to the public between mid-February 2022
and early April 2022 when the infection of Omicron in society was acute.
During such period, essential services to the public were maintained
through online platforms, telephone and email hotlines, or by dropping
documents in the collection box outside the EAA’s office. On the other
hand, recruitment interviews and assessments were conducted online.

Financial Review

Income and expenditure

For the year under review, the EAA reported a surplus of $13.3 million
(as compared to a surplus of $13.5 million last year). Income for the
year was $93.1 million, an increase of $1.8 million or 2.0% over the
previous year. Other income for the year was mainly attributed to the
reversal of the unutilized amount of $1.2 million from the provision of the
EAA’s professional development subsidy to licensees and the receipt
of the Government’s fund of $0.3 million for subsidizing a portion of the
expenditure incurred by the EAA on organizing two approved training
programmes under the Matching Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading.
Expenditure for the year was $81.4 million, representing an increase of
$3.6 million or 4.7% compared to the previous year’s.
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KA

MR E WAL BIAR 0% @ B EFE
#hn7 250 BTk 3.1% = 8,400 & It °
REFZEEFAFBEAZR LA - FRHOE
HABWARST0E L B EFEIL I 120
B 15.7% T EBREE M NE LA
2020/21 FEREB R EREHE 2019 Fk
REREIBEMEUE - B3 2021/22 FE ¥
HINEG BB RIGM  MZ2ERER
B2022F 1 AELEA - REERREE
UREEES—MBHAE  SHFBWAT
BEL408TL REFERD 190 Bk
83.0% °

* - 4% *

2019/20

* 9%

89%
- 4

2021/22

Income

Licence fee income, contributing 90% of the total income, was $84.0
million, representing an increase of $2.5 million or 3.1% over the
previous year. The increase was mainly due to a growth in the number
of licensees during the year. Examination fee income was $8.7 million,
representing an increase of $1.2 million or 15.7% over the previous year,
mainly due to a higher demand for extra examination seats for 2021/22 as
a result of the cancellation of a few sessions of qualifying examinations
in the previous year of 2020/21 because of the COVID-19 pandemic
together with an upward adjustment of the examination fees with effect
from January 2022. Interest income was $0.4 million, representing
a decrease of $1.9 million or 83% over the previous year, due to the
purchase of another office at Chai Wan in cash.

* 8% e *

89%
- " 4

2020/21

1%
<+

w #8 % Licence
' 5\ % Examination Fees

90%
= 4

KB U A Interest Income
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FH Expenditure

B TR AR At 7 R X A A E Staff costs, and office premises and related expenses were two major
BYH - #RMLBAY 62.4% & 9.9% ° expenditure items, accounting for about 62.4% and 9.9% of the total
TESREIEZINMNYHIBE BYE  HER expenditures respectively. Expenditure items that saw major increases

REZITE  EZHRBEE  BERKBER - in dollar amount were depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
AEHERIREIEHHY: TTES service fees for examinations, professional services fees, community
FERANSTHIEEBAS T A ARER A education expenses and training activity expenses. Expenditure items
KRR - that saw major decreases in dollar amount were staff costs, and office

premises and related expenses.

21% 21%
< +

68%
2020/21 N

68%
2019/20

28% *

62%
2021/22 T

ffice premises and
related expenses

' 5 Others

%ﬁ‘@iﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁz

* 10%

»
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TERBARESRMBRTHE
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FEET BUESHEZRRELESR -
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BARAEREBT BHRFIERETHE
EENRIFPEMSER EEZEE
ERKENEN -

Completion of disbursing the Government’s cash subsidy

Under the second round of Anti-epidemic Fund in 2020, the Government
provided a one-off cash subsidy to individual licensees of the estate
agency trade via the EAA to offer timely financial support in view of
the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the practice of the
estate agency trade. The EAA had started disbursing the Government’s
cash subsidy by bank cashier’s orders since May 2020 in batches. The
disbursement was completed by the end of 30 June 2021.

Acquisition of office premises

The acquisition of the new office in Chai Wan to accommodate the
majority of staff previously stationed at the rented office in Wanchai was
completed on 13 May 2021. A smaller office was instead rented again in
Wanchai mainly for serving the public and the trade.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The EAA is committed to integrating corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) principles into our daily operations and contributing to the
sustainable development of the society. Key CSR aspects such as
community, environment and workplace, are integrated into all our
operational decisions and practices. Maintaining good CSR practices
that align with our role as a statutory body involves everyone at the EAA.
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SHEEEE Charity participation
BREREHAEAdE FEFTEMAL To show our care to the underprivileged and those in need, the EAA

EERENIIFEETRBEIIRFNER supported various fund-raising activities (e.g. Dress Casual Day, Love
BB (B ARERA  ARETFH A Teeth Day, Skip Lunch Day, etc.) and community services of non-profit
HOIEIRAS) Rt ERE - 5F - & making organisations. This year, the community services in which the
ERSEMNTERGBEESEEHETF EAA participated included Interview Skill Workshop and Lunch Box
erELES RIS TAEART TIEY Giveaway of the YMCA Corporate Social Responsibility Programmes.
RELTFEHE - AREODIESASH The Interview Skill Workshop taught some senior secondary school
AERKBEARD  BRARWEILR students the brief skillsets for job interviews and thereafter mock

MrEETEREE R -mEELTFEEF - interviews were then conducted by our staff. In the Lunch Box Giveaway
EEREIAERAEEHSFEeANES charity event, our staff distributed lunch boxes at YMCA West Kowloon
AN ARSEE T RRETER - Centre to the nearby underprivileged.

EEREIRG2HBE AR ENNARERA -
The EAA staff participated in the Dress Causal Day
organised by the Hong Kong Community Chest.

EEREIZ2REEEBHSFELELERE
ST TRESRI T -

The EAA staff participated in the Interview Skill
Workshop.

o -
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The EAA Administration
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RXFFHAFATER 2019 BRREREEE
PR R FTHIETE - BB REBUT LA -
BBE _WIRIVRES AR 8IRL
ETEREBL 58T ZEREREH
FIRE TIERE  ENERERS 2
ERIERH  BERBAZSEAREE
AW BhERE BT - BB M E R
IR B ER I R R -

Post-50 Internship Programme

The EAA joined the Post-50 Internship Programme held by the
Employees Retraining Board in 2021 which aimed to provide people
aged over 50 with an opportunity to join the workforce. During the one-
month internship programme working in the EAA, the participants had
the opportunity to develop their strengths in the workplace and got up-
to-date with the current status of the job market. After the internships,
the EAA voluntarily offered the participants temporary jobs.

EERR2021F 2N hEE BB BENRD
[1250 e BB & 51El] -

The EAA joined the Post-50 Internship
Programme held by the Employee Retraining
Board in 2021.

Job Creation Scheme

To support the Government’s initiative to ease the worsening
unemployment situation due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the EAA was
approved by the Government to create some temporary posts under the
Job Creation Scheme of the second round of the Anti-epidemic Fund.
Under the scheme, the incumbents were offered job opportunities amid
the pandemic and they contributed to the EAA through visiting estate
agency shops in person to educate licensees about various compliance
issues on the spot. Their educational visits were well-received by the
estate agency shops.
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FRP LEMERFEE o
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EEREAUNEERLEENARERN

Rerz

PEE R ABMERRRRERF BN
EEREMRMERTFAMSH - HBR
BRRGEEROFERNT B RRHRA -

Environment

The EAA strives to operate as an environmentally friendly organisation
and promotes the same to its staff. Green office measures adopted
include the provision of designated trays to collect one-side printed
paper for reuse; recycling of paper and toner cartridges; and use of
environmentally friendly printing paper, timer for switching off lighting and
air-conditioning automatically, sensor for turning off lighting when no one
is moving around the area, etc.

The EAA also participated in several environmental initiatives during the
year, e.g. Green Day, Hong Kong No Air Con Night.

Information Technology

Online services

This year the EAA upgraded the audio-video equipment and telephony
for better remote communication which became indispensable office
facilities amidst the pandemic. Online services such as the licence list
has been enhanced to provide more information about a licensee for the
perusal of the public, and licence applicants can also track the status of
their applications online.

Moreover, our enforcement team started to use a computer-aided
system for scrutinising online real estate advertisements. This increased
the EAA’s efficiency and effectiveness in monitoring the compliance of
the ever-growing advertisements on the internet.

Cyber security

With the ever-increasing threat of cyber-attacks and data leakage, the
EAA has constantly reviewed its security platform and parameters to
ensure that they are on a par with the industry practice and up-to-date.
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Recap of Initiatives and Events

4/2021

EEE RS 808 A 18] 7Rt 8 WRITRREER - #
RRKRHEFARTF -

The EAA launched the “Estate Agents Energy Saving
Award Scheme” and held a kick-off ceremony with trade
representatives attending to show their support.

5/2021

@ =4T(Google) A (Yahoo) 484 i RAT o
EREEHEXEERTREINEEHE R
EERHEEYE MR 40,000 X 2H% -

An online promotional campaign about the CPD
Mark was launched in Google and Yahoo's
network and generated about 40,000 clicks to
the EAA consumer education website.

6/2021

EERTHRAREINNEAHENM  #RFEA
B BEREAREARZEFEE - FETMENERER -
The EAA's CEO attended a media interview by Metro
Radio and talked about the licensee population,
qualification examinations and the trade’s compliance
when selling first-hand residential properties.

mEER EENSEMERB THEBMEFRIT] OHER

A REE B AR IR o

A leaflet titled “Conducting unlicensed estate agency
work is a criminal offence” was produced and distributed
to estate agency shops.
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&1 N2 E B[O B Recap of Initiatives and Events

7/2021

EERBTHRTEBETEEME - QIEH2021F F¥F
W IEREN THFOIIEES
The EAA held an online live streaming press conference

to review its work in the first half of 2021 and introduce its
initiatives for the second half.

EERERBN [MENEES KRR H &R
AR 12 A AN EER M ERHEFEEERIE
[AEEEFEUEERT R | R [LinEf8E] - #R
[REEAR o

Two CPD courses repeatedly held for 12 months with
subsidies from the Government’s Matching Grant
Scheme for Skills Upgrading under the Anti-epidemic
Fund, namely “Video Production for Estate Agency Trade
Using Smartphone” and “Learning English through Land
Search”, commenced
with an overwhelming
response.
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8/2021

RERERAREAAERDLZTEREERALE
o IRBEARBEERIMIETEENES

A new Announcement in the Public Interest (API) to
remind the public of the important points-to-note when

purchasing non-local properties was launched on major
TV and radio stations.

BT REFETEHRRFRARNRE NMEEE
A focus group meeting with front-line licensees was held
in Mei Foo District.

M B TR [2021 S Bt — A B
Two staff were granted The Ombudsman’s Awards 2021
for Officers of Public Organisations.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22 67



& it A 2D (0] A

Recap of Initiatives and Events

10/2021

. EERMBENREESHAZRITRAEE -
An opening ceremony was held for the EAA’s newly purchased office
at E-Trade plaza.

9/2021 | |

. TEF W EE ) Facebook B E M8 F HEE
BE - REEH B EAIRBEIEEE -

An online live seminar reminding consumers of
the points-to-note about mortgage was held on
the Facebook page of Metro Broadcast.

oo
 EERE HEWR

X

O =ERIEEFRIHREIS
ERIBERMRMRIE] &
HEB(SHEE - XN ERBRT
EAA’s former Chairman Professor
William Leung delivered a CPD
talk titled [18 EZIREIR] with
overwhelmingly good response
from the trade.

. N PR mERRTETEHRESE
The quarterly trade liaison meeting was held in
an online conference format.

EERSINEBEER
FFEHEEEAEN
BOFERE] BEM
SEMTES -

The EAA joined a
CSR activity namely
“Lunch Box Giveaway”
under the YMCA
Social Responsibility
programme.

i |
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11/2021

BRETAAZEY [ E R IR ERIND T8 | 87
R ANERRIMIERERE -

A meeting with the newly formed concern group| bz
RIBEFRBEEIRING R T4 was held to discuss the
subject of non-local properties.

EERIEMTHAREFEEBMEREDAE30E
FEMPMAEFRER o

The EAA Chairman and CEO attended the 30"
Anniversary cum new office opening ceremony of the
Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies General Association.

12/2021

HERNABERTRIIBEEE  BUEMRIDEZRE -
A special trade liaison meeting with eight major trade
associations was held to discuss the subject of non-local
properties.

AH1BBFIMEREFHEE 2 EFBEFTFEEE - B
FIHERBEBEZLEERAES] HARBE10FUR
BETS o

A total of 188 estate agency shops were awarded the
“CPD Mark” in recognition of their active participation in the
Continuing Professional Development Scheme and it is the
highest number recorded in the last ten years.
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Recap of Initiatives and Events

1/2022

@ EREHRARN202F1 A1 BMALS -
The qualifying examination fees were increased with effect
from 1 January 2022.

. EERTFERITRAENENAE T ERFTEREMAS  DEEE
52021 FH) THER T 2022 FH) THFEE

The EAA’s Chairman and CEO hosted an online live streaming
press conference to review the EAA's work in 2021 and
introduced its initiatives for 2022.

. EEREH—MIHERS (R 22-01(CR)) » AitIERER
HEERIBCE F HER (AR E ) 16RDI)EE VA BBIEREE Sl HIE R
ENOHEMRERERTEBENES - WHR2022F2 A%
PRI E - M ABEITRENAT o

The EAA issued a new Practice Circular (no. 22-01 (CR))
providing guidelines for estate agents to follow when handling
regulated tenancies in respect of subdivided units that are
subject to the tenancy control regime under Part IVA of
the Landlord and Tenant (Consolidation) Ordinance and a
webinar to brief licensees on the new circular was arranged in
February 2022.

BRAEERREK HEREER \XHgRTERE B
B EREIRING R RENE R AEE— 5T o

The representatives of the Transport and Housing Bureau
and the EAA met with eight major trade associations to
listen to their views on and further discuss the subject of
non-local properties.

BB RICRIINE R Z [ ISMART )V IMIBF » MR AR5 )
BERRBEHLRDR

The EAA’'s booklet titled “Purchasing Non-local Properties
Be SMART” was distributed to the public through inserting
in some daily newspapers.
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¥ N R E) B EE Recap of Initiatives and Events

2/2022

BN 2019 AR R S8 58 TR E 15 K A2 R
B &EN - EERENFRER [EEBT
BB -

In view of the fifth wave of COVID-19 and to echo
the Government’s anti-pandemic measures, the
EAA implemented the “vaccine pass” policy in its
offices.

EERITBBHBE MM A M EpR - # Kk
EERERB THEAIELH - BEHHEN
RERERMHEBEUSIRIMESTZE -
The EAA CEO attended an online interview by
Metro Finance Radio and talked about the EAA’'s
special work arrangement under the pandemic,
the new Practice Circular on the tenancy of
subdivided units and the issue of non-local
properties.

3/2022

EERBMER [FINE X BB | 0 Facebook B &R EE -
The EAA held a Facebook live seminar titled “Practical tips for
purchasing properties situated outside Hong Kong”.

BHEIMEERREK  EERH [MERBERMESEINIERRE
HIRTER  RIMDEZENERIEE— LR -

The representatives of the Transport and Housing Bureau and the
EAA met with the concern group [ HBEEIE R IHE R INI R
JE#A ] to listen to their views on and further discuss the subject of
non-local properties.

[Enae B [ I=aTat 8l | EmAER - & 387 M ERIEEHNHE
FARAREIE PR - HEIGRETE BB BEE -

The “Estate Agents Energy Saving Award Scheme” concluded
with 387 estate agency shops awarded in the online ceremony.
Over 250,000 units of electricity consumption were saved in the
Scheme.
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Advances in Gatekeeping
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Qualifying Examinations

As a gatekeeper to ensure persons entering the trade possess the
required knowledge to provide estate agency services, one of the
prerequisites for obtaining a licence to practise in the estate agency
industry is to pass the relevant qualifying examination. Currently, the EAA
offers two types of qualifying examinations, namely: (i) the Estate Agents
Qualifying Examination (“EAQE”) and (i) the Salespersons Qualifying
Examination (“SQE”).

A candidate who passes the EAQE may apply for either an estate
agent’s licence (individual) or a salesperson’s licence. A candidate who
passes the SQE may apply for a salesperson’s licence only.

The qualifying examinations were administered by the Institute of
Professional Education And Knowledge (“PEAK”) of the Vocational
Training Council (“VTC”) on behalf of the EAA in 2021/22.

The qualifying examinations comprise of two parts — one consisting of
stand-alone questions and the other consisting of questions based on
case studies. Candidates must pass both parts in order to pass the
examination.

Part 1 of the examination is intended to test candidates’ knowledge of
various parts of the syllabi of the EAQE and SQE, including the laws
and practices applicable to the estate agency practice, while Part 2 is
intended to test candidates’ ability to apply the knowledge to practical
scenarios.

EERBEMEREAURRIR S MEREITE

AT EEAHE A

Qualifying examinations are organised to

ensure that persons entering the trade
‘ possess the required knowledge to provide

estate agency services
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2021/22F Eh ERBEEREREEXEEREAZNVLENT ¢
A comparison of the EAQE and SQE held in 2021/22 is set out as follows:

WERBEERER
EAQE

EREEREHR
SQE

EHEH 435"

FHEERA : 552

Paper-based: 5 sessions?®

Number of 4 sessions' BREZELN 10158
Sessions Computer-based: 10 sessions®
ZHEE
o N 2/\E$30%5 8
Examination
; 3 hours 2 hours and 30 minutes
Time

FE—7D : 0B HE

FE—Eb5 : 0B HE

AEHE Part 1: 30 stand-alone questions Part 1: 40 stand-alone questions

Number of FEFD : 2015HE KB ER S T) FEFD - 101558 RBER ST
Questions Part 2: 20 questions based on case studies Part 2: 10 questions based on case studies
i ZIREE

Format Multiple-choice questions

BRIH FEH TR EEHO0%

Pass Mark At least 60% of correct answers in each part

2021/22F ERERITHBSHEREERE
o BEEP—IHE019EAMRSHEMEUE °

2021/22% B RFERIT B EREE B M
BEBEBES - BER—BHE010BHE
SHEMEVH -

2021/22F EREBRITI2IGEIMEZEXD
BEBERES  BHPRIZE2019EMRFE
SHMEVHE o

! Five EAQEs were originally scheduled in 2021/22 but one of which was
cancelled due to COVID-19.

2 Six paper-based SQEs were originally scheduled in 2021/22 but one of which
was cancelled due to COVID-19.

s Twelve computer-based SQEs were originally scheduled in 2021/22 but two of
which were cancelled due to COVID-19.
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EREENREREEAR

E2021/22F € » shEMEREEREH
MABLAES,691A  RELEBERERN
AERBI A7 550N @ MEEREF S BIEINL
33% K %12.1% °

H2020/21F E AL - BEREZHERIE
BB AR ABIBING37%ZE5,236A © 1M
EREEEEEEREANMAZKA LAY
3.4%%E6,556 A °

BER2020/21FEMERBUEERER
ERSHEREERRENIFE A
2021/22F EMHERIEERERAREES
éiﬂ%ﬁmi&%&%%/\ﬁkmﬁzﬁiﬁ '

EHREERELNEKRETH  BREK
%Pﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ%%ﬁ » RE2021410 A
BEEKEZEANEEEEREARE
iIE%F:E{_Lgyi °

1E2021/22F % - W ERIPEREARE
BERERANTIEEES RN A30.7% %
30.2% + M2020/21 FEMEZ AN S KK
B9 Bl 522.5% % 37.8% °

WERBERES
Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

Number of registrants and candidates for qualifying
examinations

A total of 5,691 persons registered for the EAQEs and a total of 7,550
persons registered for the SQEs held in 2021/22, which represented an
increase of about 33% and about 2.1% respectively over those of the
previous year.

Compared to that in 2020/21, the number of examination candidates
that actually took the EAQE increased by about 37% to 5,236 and in the
case of the SQE, it increased by about 3.4% to 6,556.

Although seating capacity for paper-based examinations and supply
of school-based examination venues continued to be affected in
2020/21 due to COVID-19, the increase in the number of registrants
and candidates for the EAQEs and the SQEs in 2021/22 was a result
of the special arrangements made by the EAA in relation to booking of
commercial venues for paper-based examinations and the resumption of
normal seating capacity for computer-based SQEs since October 2021.

In 2021/22, the average pass rates for the EAQE and SQE were 30.7%
and 30.2% respectively, as against 22.5% and 37.8% respectively in
2020/21.

EXBEERER
Sales Person Qualifying Examination

6,000 8,000
5,238 7,000
6,556
2000 6,340
6,000
4,000 3,866 3,812
5000 4,729
3,000 4,000
3,000
2,000
30.7% 2,000 37.8%
1,000 25% 22.5% 308% 30.2%
[ 1,000 ]
0 0
s, = — — — —
EI_:ZE'EDEI_;@ Ekgaal_;@aalfg
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
&
FEE N =| atex

Number of Examination Candidates :_8 Pass Rate
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HERERERERERASEE

EHE2019EMEESREBENER EER
1E2021/22F EE& HEUE T W5 ERER -
HhpiE—SHEREERER « —152
AEERAMEXEERER - URWIE
BEEEANEEEERER

E2021/22F A + AEREAHEUE T
FENELESBREERE -

BT B0 B R E B R E RIKF

REERHEEFPERNE AR
KPETERR RO ERZHMAN
SRIKF MR THER] - W hN— B3 &
A -EMELERAEEE RERNETAER
PHERTBELMFTAMBET - %5
ERBUEEEE RN ER - L ABBE
FERMMRELRRSNEAEEREERN
EREnl BEME - RFEEDR2022
FIA1RRERNEALER

BEELZE

fE2021/22F % ' EEEXBEREAN
ZhE o ABAESIULBENLROE
33.8% ERHEREBERES - AHKX
Bei bl FEFEME LR E41.8%
FE¥12020/21 FE M L R B9 Bl 234.6% &
44.5% o —fRE - BERSMNELEME
BMES L ERRENZEEAS °

Cancellation and rescheduling of examinations due to the
pandemic

Due to the development of COVID-19, the EAA cancelled a total of four
qualifying examinations in 2021/22, which comprised of one EAQE, one
paper-based SQE and two computer-based SQEs.

Affected candidates from the cancelled qualifying examinations in
2021/22 received full refund of examination fees.

Revision to the level of penalties for certain breaches of
examination regulations

Following the EAA’s review of the level of penalties imposed against
common breaches of examination rules, revisions were made to the level
of penalties for certain breaches of examination rules and a new penalty
was added such that any candidate convicted of an offence involving
a dishonest or fraudulent act in relation to any examination organised
by the EAA would be disqualified from the relevant examination and be
prohibited from registering for any subsequent qualifying examination
of the EAA for a period of two years from the date of conviction. Such
changes have taken effect with respect to examinations scheduled after
1 January 2022.

Educational background of candidates

In 2021/22, the percentage of candidates who took the SQE and who
have attained tertiary or above educational level was about 33.8%, and
that for the EAQE was about 41.8%, as compared to 34.6% and 44.5%
respectively in 2020/21. Generally, candidates with higher educational
qualifications scored higher marks than those candidates with lower
educational qualifications.
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2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
BE EEEE L= fEEEE
Education o= BR b= BRER b= BRER
Level % of Pass rate % of Pass rate % of Pass rate
candidates candidates candidates
PR
Fs 26.8% 16.2% 28% 17.1% 30% 25.4%
ANt
8.2% 22.7% 8% 19.7% 8.8% 25%
HhEE R IE FéorF.7
AREE REHRIA L
EAQE Tertiary or 45.7% 62.1% 44.5% 25.8% 41.8% 35.6%
above
BRI
19.3% 24.5% 19.5% 24.1% 19.4% 31.1%
Unknown
ek
F5 35.9% 27.3% 35.5% 33.3% 34.5% 27.3%
ANt
15.2% 22.6% 15.7% 29.7% 16.4% 26.7%
o 3 F.6orF.7
BB KEH L
SQE Tertiary or 32.3% 76.4% 34.6% 44.5% 33.8% 33.5%
above
BRI
16.6% 33.7% 14.2% 42% 15.3% 33%
Unknown
BEALHBEES Occupational background of registrants

BEEREDANALERAZEERKA
BEITBRENAL BETERME R
17~ &5t - RERRKR - AR2MERE
AEEERAIB44% °

Persons registered for the qualifying examinations included students
and people from a wide range of occupational backgrounds, including
the retail and wholesale business, banking, accounting, investment and
insurance. About 44% of the candidates attempted the examination for
the first time.

78

HENREBEER 2021/22F 3R




IRFHER Advances in Gatekeeping

WEREEREZH
Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

I ERIEE Estate Agency Trade
/1T &5 RE

Banking / Accounting / Investment
=8 HE

Retail / Wholesale Business
)% E12 Property Management
724 B2 Architecture / Surveying
&K Insurance
24 Students

B/ RS

Education / Social Service
SE G281 Hotel / Catering
I3 Tourism

BERAFE Unknown

fiZE Aviation

H A Others

44 e+ 4+

ExEERER
Salespersons Qualifying Examination

R B &% 8 Salesperson-trainee
R7 &5 RE
Banking / Accounting / Investment

TE HE
Retail / Wholesale Business

Y)%EIR Property Management
325 812 Architecture / Surveying
#K Insurance

B4 Students

HE RS

Education / Social Service
SEJE /B8R Hotel / Catering
B35 Tourism

ERAF Unknown

L% Aviation

E A Others

4444 LA+ 4+ 4+
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ZESMEFANRE

Number of attempts by candidates at examinations
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LEFIIMERIN - (EAEE B FERIE
TEMAL - BEABAEEMNER - TR
SRILED -

ERIEHET - BRHAMIE - 55 A%
% BRI R E (ITIEAE - 4% BRI
SHTFEA ¢ M0 RI2IERAIT BT (6
AR ¢

FEZXBRBNEARSFHEBENR
BREHERETIE  MIEAHERER
FREVELARIR] Afs i ERER FHER
BTHEINBEREE ARELENAR
ASFEHERERRNABNESTH MK
EMERETE - A RZER/MER
BEETRER-2XMHNKE  AEEUN
T EBIE R -

! CHERIZIED) EIBIFRE - WERIZET
HEEE IR - Al — REEERE T
BRI - T RZ B AR MR R EE U2 (ELA)
MEIREF A A -

Licensing

Licensing regime

Subject to certain exceptions as stipulated in the Estate Agents
Ordinance (“EAQ”) and its subsidiary legislation, any person who carries
out estate agency work in Hong Kong must hold a valid licence. Failure
to do so is an offence.

Under the licensing regime, there are two types of licences, namely,
salesperson’s licence and estate agent’s licence. A salesperson’s
licence may only be granted to an individual while an estate agent’s
licence may be granted either to an individual or a company.

An individual holding a salesperson’s licence may only perform estate
agency work for a licensed estate agent, whereas a holder of an estate
agent’s licence may perform estate agency work either for a licensed
estate agent or in his/her capacity as a sole proprietor, a partner of
a partnership, or a director of a company holding an estate agent’s
licence. He may also be appointed as a manager of an office of an estate
agency business responsible for its effective and separate control'.

! Section 38 of the EAO requires each office of an estate agency business to be
under the effective and separate control of a manager who must be a holder of
an estate agent’s licence (individual).
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Before operating an estate agency business at a particular place of
business using a particular business name, an estate agent is required
to apply for a statement of particulars of business (“SPOB”).

To be granted an estate agent’s licence or a salesperson’s licence, an
individual must fulffill the following requirements:

° having attained the age of 18 years;

° having completed an educational level of Form Five of secondary
education or its equivalent;

° having passed the relevant qualifying examination'; and

° having been considered by the EAA a “fit and proper” person.

Licensing figures

In the year of 2021/22, the licensee population continued to expand.
The total number of individual licences increased by 2.4% over that of
the previous year. As at 31 March 2022, there were 42,016 individual
licences. Among these licences, 23,035 were salesperson’s licences
and 18,981 were estate agent’s licences (individual).

The number of company licences and SPOBs also increased,
respectively to 3,915 and 7,160, representing an increase of 0.7% and
1.6% over those of 31 March 2021.

In 2021/22, 2,868 new individual licences were granted, an increase of
25.1% compared to that of the previous year.

1£2021/225F % - BAE Bt H 2,868 {EH &

FOEARR - R EFEEMN251% -

In 2021/22, 2,868 new individual licences
were granted, an increase of 25.1%

l l h 1 compared to that of the previous year.

! The qualifying examination must have been passed within 12 months
immediately before the date of an application for the grant of a licence.
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Number of Licences and SPOBs in the Past Three Years
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BAFBRANESR
Background of individual licensees

BFERAWEREKE (B ZE202243H31H)
Educational Level of Licensees (as at 31/3/2022)

3.9%

2.7%

hERIE (EA) EEEMRIFAA i
RREFE A Holders of Overall
Holders of Estate Salesperson’s
Agent’s Licence Licence
(Individual)
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Age of Licensees (as at 31/3/2022)
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BRAFBRENBAES (B£2202293H31H)
Licensees’ Choice of Language in Communication (as at 31/3/2022)

3578 X
Chinese English
88.0% 12.0%
95.1% 4.9%
91.9% 8.1%
HEREELNSEHR Operations of estate agency business

—WNEETE © 2021/22F F K% St E= K38 As usual, most of the estate agencies operated in 2021/22 were
BRNVREREEE - BLE202293 A31 small scale operators. As at 31 March 2022, 95.3% of estate agency
H - 95.3%MENRBEERKLLE ARK operators operated as a single shop and less than 1% had five or more
— MG - R A E AEE A B8 shops.

RIEL1% °

REEBHRERN (B£202243H31H)
Mode of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2022)

JEHEBR
&2 & Operator Number of shops

5,447

161

1,652

7,160

* F3,915{E A Rl AL * Operated by 3,915 Company Licensees
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REEKWRE (B Z202243831H)
Size of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2022)

JEFE B
Number of shops?*
i 1 2 3 4 5-10 11-20 21-30 >30
Operator
BPRA T Limited companies 3,701 137 37 13 20 2 1 4
A B K& Partnerships 144 5 1 1 0 0 0 0
B E 4% Sole proprietorships 1,456 37 2 1 2 0 0 0
/N5t Sub-total | 5,301 179 40 15 22 2 1 4

* A BERRE

*i.e. SPOBs
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Failure to meet the licensing requirements

A licence applicant must have fulfilled certain requirements in order
to be granted a licence. If a licence applicant fails to meet any of the
licensing requirements, his/her licence application will be refused. In
2021/22, a total of 57 applications were refused for different reasons,
such as applicants were considered not having the required educational
qualifications or not being considered “fit and proper” persons to be
granted a licence (e.g. bankruptcy or conviction of a criminal offence).

Even if a licence has been granted, a licensee’s licence may be revoked
if he/she is no longer eligible to continue to hold a licence. During the
year, a total of 32 licences were revoked by the Licensing Committee as
the relevant licensees no longer met the licensing requirements.

Actions Taken Against Licensees by the Licensing Committee

TEER

Types of Actions 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
TERRRR E B ANME1E Attachment of conditions to licence 54 53 87
% $Hh8 ER Suspension of licence 0 0 0
H$4H2 5B Revocation of licence 57 36 32

HLEREER

EREE BREUMEME FREKRSHEA
A 0 SRR Z 1A 24 18 A K AT {E
ANERBIFBEA  JRBEEIIERE -
FR O EEBKEIHL34, 743D EAFEA
KA AR ERR RS - H R 558.6% (BT
20,3727 M RRERFE) 4848 LIRAT

Online application for licences

Individual licensees and former licensees whose individual licences have
ceased to be valid for not more than 24 months may submit their licence
applications online if they have registered an e-Service account at the
EAA’s website. During the year, among the 34,743 licence applications
received from current and former holders of individual licences, 58.6%
(i.e. 20,372 licence applications) were submitted online.
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Ethics and Regulations

Introduction of regulations

The EAA established under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAQ”) is
tasked to, inter alia, regulate and control the practice of estate agents
and salespersons and to take such actions as the EAA considers
appropriate or necessary to promote the integrity and competence
amongst, or maintain or enhance the status of, estate agents and
salespersons. Estate agents and salespersons must observe and
comply with all the relevant provisions in the EAO and its subsidiary
legislation, the Code of Ethics and all the applicable guidelines set out
in the practice circulars issued by the EAA when they carry out estate
agency work.

Issuance of practice circular

The EAA reviews the practices of the trade and issues practice circulars
to provide guidelines on estate agency practice from time to time, to
enable licensees to comply with their duties under the law. During the
year, one circular was issued as described below.

In light of the requirements under Part IVA of the Landlord and Tenant
(Consolidation) Ordinance (“LTCO”), which came into effect on 22
January 2022, the EAA issued a new practice circular providing
guidelines for estate agents to follow when handling tenancies in respect
of subdivided units that are subject to the tenancy control regime under
Part IVA of the LTCO (i.e. “regulated tenancies”).

The guidelines include requirement for licensees to (i) disclose their
capacity to act in the transaction to the prospective tenants at the
first opportunity after they have successfully established contact with
the prospective tenants; (i) explain to the clients the key requirements
under Part IVA of the LTCO in relation to the security of tenure and rent
regulation, and the mandatory terms to be implied for every “regulated
tenancy” before arranging for them to enter into the tenancy agreement;
(i) advise the clients that the provisions in the tenancy agreement should
not contain provisions which are inconsistent with the security of tenure
and rent regulation requirements, and the mandatory terms implied
for every “regulated tenancy”; (iv) provide the clients with a copy of the
summary mandatory terms implied for every “regulated tenancy”; (v)
draw the clients’ attention to the relevant offences and penalties under
Part IVA of the LTCO; and (vi) invite the clients to make enquiry with the
Rating and Valuation Department if they have questions concerning the
regulatory regime under Part IVA of the LTCO, or recommend them to
seek legal advice, if necessary.
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To assist the trade to better understand the requirements of the practice
circular, a set of “Questions and Answers” was posted on the EAA’s
website for the trade’s reference.

Issuance of Letters to Licensees

With a view to reminding licensees of the requirements under the
relevant laws and regulations when carrying out estate agency work and
to draw their attention to the updates on certain Government measures
and/or documentation which may be relevant to their practices, the EAA
issued three Letters to Licensees during the year.

In view of the concerns that some licensees might have participated in
the illegal letting of public housing flats sold under the Tenants Purchase
Scheme, the EAA issued a Letter to Licensees to remind them to refrain
from handling the selling or letting of subsidised sale flats which were
subject to restrictions on alienation where the specific requirements have
not been met.

In light of the new inspection regime under the Companies Ordinance,
the EAA issued a Letter to Licensees to draw their attention to the
same and that the Companies Registry would eventually make available
for public inspection correspondence addresses of directors in place
of their usual residential addresses (“URAs”) and partial identification
numbers (“IDNs”) of directors and company secretaries in place of their
full IDNs. Although licensees could still apply for access to the URAs
of the relevant persons and their full IDNs after implementation of the
new inspection regime, the EAA also reminded licensees to use those
information strictly in the performance of their functions under the Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance.

In response to the amendments to the Mortgage Insurance Programme
for completed residential properties, the EAA issued a Letter to
Licensees to draw their attention to the latest requirements.
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Complaints and Inspections

Complaints and enquiries handling

In 2021/22, the EAA received 285 complaints, a decrease of 25% from
380 complaints in 2020/21. Among the 285 complaints received in the
year, key allegations included issuing non-compliant advertisements,
mishandling of provisional agreements for sale and purchase (or
provisional tenancy agreements), and providing inaccurate or misleading
property information.

In general, there was a decrease in most types of complaints, including
issuing non-compliant advertisements, from 108 in 2020/21 to 96 in
2021/22. However, although there was a decrease in advertisement
complaints, those related to online advertisements increased from 80
in 2020/21 to 87 in 2021/22, constituting 91% of the 96 advertisement
complaints in 2021/22. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, online
advertisements have become more popular and the EAA has and will
continue to step up its enforcement actions to spot-check and monitor
online advertisements, by way of patrolling property online platforms and
social media in cyberspace with the aid of IT technology.

The first-hand residential property market was stagnant under the fifth
wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter of 2022. Complaints
concerning the sale of first-hand residential properties experienced a
significant decrease from 71 in 2020/21 to 47 in 2021/22, a drop of
34%. Key allegations of those complaints were issuing non-compliant
advertisements, failing to honour rebate promises, and provision of
misleading mortgage information.

In the year, the EAA also received 5,529 enquiries on estate agency
practices, and in response to those enquiries, the EAA took follow-up
actions on 1,449 enquiries.

BLE N2021/224F [ R E285RIX A - |
2020/21F[Z 3805 R T25%

In 2020/21, the EAA received 285 complaints,
a decrease of 25% from 380 complaints in
2020/21.
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RFER

Complaint Cases
{E=# B Number of Cases 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
FEEZ Opened 268 380 285
B 5ER Y B2 Completed* 264 215 278

* FRERHERBY /AEFEENEE - 8
TEEREEEKITEN TREEESR
EMEZE - ARBRFHBRITHEHERENR
[Es7 SN vas ok

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The
figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the Disciplinary
Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints and
Enforcement Sections.

BRI ERE R Results of Cases Completed* 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

ETEAX S Substantiated” 75 71 111

FETBT A SZ Unsubstantiated 123 87 95

BRI RE Insufficient information to pursue 17 22 19

EAtn* Others* 49 35 53

% Total 264 215 278
 EREROERSOAEEEENER - 8 * Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The

TEAREEBKITEN TLREESR
EMEZ - AR BRSFEBRITEEEENR
ERE BT EZ -

figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the Disciplinary
Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints and
Enforcement Sections.

A WEAZRF S R E —IBIEBE DB A = A completed case will be classified as “Substantiated” if any of the allegations
BT ZE TR ERENE<EIewEE involved therein has been concluded as “Substantiated”.
RIERAKL] -

# BEEEFAE  BUEIRFAEM R A MR # Include cases which were curtailed, withdrawn or closed due to other reasons.
IFRABMEZR -

BERKERAE

AR ERIEN I E T TIFE T 2019 While estate agents’ sales activities continued to be affected by
MEEREEYE B ER FESET the COVID-19 pandemic, promotion through online advertisements
HEAMEBBREEN - AEMBAEL 53 was gaining increasing popularity. In response to the change, the
MAHEBEERP ITMETLENES - AE EAA stepped up its effort on patrolling online property portals and
KRR IR B AR MOE W ELEN S A 178 257 advertisements in cyberspace so as to timely identify non-compliances

Compliance inspections and investigations

ErREMEHE  BEERNMENREE and take enforcement actions. During investigation of suspected cases,
RIBARERFZ U LZEZRFREHEE £ the EAA also put effort into examining whether estate agency companies

REBES  UBERHETI RS HIES A had established proper procedures or systems to supervise and manage
ABETHBEETENLIES o their business to ensure that their staff and persons under their control
abide by the relevant requirements and guidelines.
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During the year, the EAA conducted 1,280 compliance inspections at
first-sale sites, 766 compliance inspections at agency shops and 1,311
compliance checks for Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”)/Counter-Terrorist
Financing (“CTF”) requirements. Some 1,101 spot checks on online
advertisements were also carried out during the period.

EHEKE HE

Compliance Inspections/Spot Checks
K& #E X2 Number of Inspections/Spot Checks 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
—FIEEIHE B First-sale sites* 727 648 1,280
o EE R IE RS 4§ Agency shops 1,121 880 766
BAREEERRMO TESESRTE
About AML/CTF requirements 666 1,193 1,311
48 _EFEE4 Online advertisements 689 1,319 1,101

* BRI « BRIHEE AR - .

HKEFNMEES - EEREFRYL T160R
ARERER  WHE—FHAE - FHT
KT 169 fEZE -

Include development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

Subsequent to inspections and spot checks, 160 suspected non-
compliant cases were opened for further investigation, while in the same
period 169 cases were completed.

KE  MERBRNERER

Non-compliant Cases Arising from Inspections/Spot Checks
{822 B Number of Cases 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
FISZ BV {EZE Opened 154 210 160
E ek By 2 Completed* 115 126 169

* FRATROERLD REFRENEE - & *
PEERRERBRRLIEN TLREZESR
EMEZE - ARBRSFEBRITHEEENE
ERE BT EZ -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The
figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the Disciplinary
Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Complaints and
Enforcement Sections.

92

HENREBEER 2021/22F 3R



&M% Proactive in Law Enforcement

HYROEEREHERZAIREHER
BERNERABREFANAE

E2021/22F € EERFE T37TRAH
IR TE R A5 b PR s B W B VB L R R PR Bk
REERER R GLEREEH) BHIE
BMEZR - TR EEREESENT16
ErSE AR - UETTHIERAS -

Investigations into licensees/licence applicants suspected
of making false statements or furnishing false information
to the EAA

In 2021/22, the EAA also conducted investigations into 37 licence
applications in which the applicants were suspected of making false
statements or furnishing false information in their licence application or
licence renewal process, which is an offence under the Estate Agents
Ordinance. In the year, the EAA referred 16 suspicious cases to the
Police for criminal investigations.

{8228 B Number of Cases 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
K EZE Opened 106 42 37
2 5eA Y B ZE* Completed* 63 62 49

* FATRNEREY HEFEENER
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Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.

Combatting money laundering and terrorist financing risks
in property transactions

The EAA continued its efforts on supervising the estate agency trade
practitioners’ compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”) and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CTF”) requirements by adopting a risk-
based approach. Estate agency companies were classified under
different AML/CTF risk categories. The intensity of supervision and
frequency of inspections by the EAA were based on the level of threats
and vulnerability of the estate agency companies. Throughout the
supervision, the EAA examined estate agencies’ policies, procedures
and control systems to assess their AML/CTF risks and the mitigation
measures taken by them for the EAA’s continuous monitoring.

Disciplinary Actions

Inquiry hearings

If the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the EAA has reasons to believe
that a licensee has failed to comply with the EAO and/or its subsidiary
legislation; or is not eligible to hold or continue to hold a licence; or has
failed to comply with a specified condition attached to his/her licence,
the CEO shall make a submission to the EAA’s Disciplinary Committee
for consideration if an inquiry hearing should be conducted.

The Disciplinary Committee, a standing committee established under
the EAQ, receives, considers and conducts inquiries into complaints and
submissions by the CEO. If the Disciplinary Committee, after conducting
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an inquiry hearing, is satisfied that the complaint or submission is well-
founded, it may exercise disciplinary powers including admonishing
or reprimanding the licensee concerned, attaching/varying specified
conditions attached to his/her licence, suspending/revoking his/her
licence, imposing a fine and making a costs order.

Bt EE R
A staged inquiry hearing.

Despite the instability of the pandemic situation in Hong Kong, the EAA
managed to conduct inquiry hearings throughout most of 2021/22. The
Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 318 cases in 2021/22, which almost
doubled the number from last year. Nine hearings were adjourned in
2021/22 due to the pandemic.

Out of the 318 adjudicated cases in 2021/22, 309 were substantiated
(i.e. 97.2%). As a result, a total of 313 licensees were disciplined, among
which 157 were individual licensees' and 156 were company licensees.

During the same period, 18 licences were suspended by the
Disciplinary Committee for periods that ranged from one week to one
month. Licensees disciplined were found to have been engaged in
unprofessional conduct such as misrepresentations, failure to protect
and promote the interests of their clients, or failure to exercise due care
and due diligence when carrying out their duties.

In 2021/22, a total of 265 licensees were fined, with fines that ranged
from $1,000 to $250,000.

! Including sole-proprietors and partners of estate agency firms.
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Publication of reasons for the decisions of inquiry hearings

The EAA publishes results of recent inquiry hearings on its webpage
titled “Recent Inquiry Hearing Results”. After a period of two or three
years depending on the date of adjudication of the cases, the EAA will
move all the substantiated full inquiry hearing cases and their reasons for
decisions under “Recent Inquiry Hearing Results” to its webpage titled
“Reasons for Decisions of Past Inquiry Hearing Cases” for a period of
five years.

The aforesaid publication not only enhances the transparency of
the EAA’s work, it also enables the estate agency trade to have a
better understanding of the EAA’s disciplinary decisions and learn
how to comply with the EAO, which helps reduce the risks of similar
non-compliances in the future. In the long run, it is hoped that such
publication will contribute to the improvement of the professional
standard of the trade.

Publication of the reasons for disciplinary decisions also provides a
way for the public to understand the EAA’s disciplinary decisions, and
enables consumers to make informed choices when they engage the
services of licensees.

Number of Inquiry Hearings Held with Decision Handed Down

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

i sR 2L Number of hearings

129 167 318
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ERRE

Number of

2021/22F EHE REREIE*

Common Types of Non-compliance in 2021/22*
Allegations

1. | #EBEEZEE FBERSARGHEMNES TRUEENESEENERIAREENE
o REER R AEERETENESABLERES EFETNES

Issuing an advertisement with false or misleading information in a material particular; providing 123
false or misleading information in relation to publication of an advertisement; advertising without

the vendor/landlord’s prior written consent or in contravention of their instruction

2. | REEWMENESNBE LA MERRARRYERT N HZESOER B A
H

Failing to state clearly, legibly and accurately in a property advertisement the property number

98

concerned and/or the date on which the advertisement was issued/updated

3. | A ANEAZEMEMERBARNEGEREHEH —FETERNES
Issuing an advertisement concerning a first-hand residential development in the licensee’s 41

personal capacity instead of in the capacity of an estate agency company

4. | REEBTEERMBELHNERETROAERRRMD FESEEHRTEHIES
Failing to comply with the guidelines issued by the EAA in respect of compliance of anti-money 41

laundering and counter-terrorist financing requirements

5. | EESARHEEEYENBEEBER KEETEERMELES

Failing to comply with the guidelines issued by the EAA when providing the floor area information 40

of a residential property in an advertisement

6. | NAKIBIREL TRERERESE(BRTRR R ESELSURES - RIRELF
AETFHIA LSRR

Affixing/placing or being in possession and having control of an advertisement board/a poster/ 35

folding table/chair/sun shade or pull-up banner in a public area, or causing or permitting staff to
do so
7. | REBRIRAMEER  REBRFMAT BRI ERRERER

Failing to possess prescribed property information; failing to ensure that the prescribed property 30

information in the licensee’s possession was accurate

8. | REBITRERIELNA S EIMEAE K, HASEFRF|AEBEE
Failing to provide to purchasers and/or set out in writing the cash rebate as promised

23

9. | RETEMNWESRFER  RERBERATFLIRENDENR HE AL
Providing property or transactional information which is inaccurate; failing to verify the accuracy 21
of property or transactional information provided to clients
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. N EBRH
2021/22F EE RERER (B
Number of
Common Types of Non-compliance in 2021/22* (continued) .
Allegations
RERRETAREPAFIANERMNIESBEREZ R | RAEERIBRET)ERYIAZHE
B R Ew B
Failing to complete a prescribed form in accordance with the directions and instructions specified 20
in the form; failing to state clearly in an estate agency agreement the expiry date of its validity
period
* HAREFNERR S R BE—EEEE * There could be more than one type of non-compliances in some inquiry hearing
E“_ ° cases.
[ 45 B A5 B 55 1R A BRER B9 1T B
Actions Taken Against Licensees or Former Licensees* 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

TENMEE
Type of actions’

* 15 LT B RARYE GAE IR IRP]) FTiE T A
HMEREE) - BEREiOTTEIBAL RIS - &
RIRHERE S GHTEN - MO ERZE
FREZSHER -

! RO ERED - YR — R ARATREA
RIBIB—IAITH

2 BB RO L R PR B B D - ELBRRBE AR MY
e

L EUERSEEREEGHE  EAERE
APNBREEEER T -

234 252 432
123 163 313
98 141 265
111 102 206
14 13 18
574 36~ 324

These actions were taken pursuant to powers under the EAO. Some actions
were disciplinary in nature whereas others were decided by the Licensing
Committee. Some cases were carried over from previous years.

! In some cases, more than one action was imposed on the same licensee or
former licensee.

2 Some conditions were attached upon the granting of licences while others were
attached subsequently.
~ These cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the

licensees concerned no longer met the relevant licensing requirements.
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Professional Development

To nurture licensees’ quest for lifelong advancement and encourage
their continuous learning, a Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”)
Scheme has been implemented since 2005 on a voluntary basis.
Through the CPD Scheme, licensees are encouraged to attend various
CPD courses to acquire a wide range of useful skills and knowledge to
develop their expertise and professional abilities in order to effectively
carry out estate agency work.

The CPD Scheme

The EAA includes a broad scope of subjects in the various CPD activities
to stimulate licensees’ interests. These broad scope of subjects are
classified under two main categories, namely Compliance and Effective
Management and All-round Advancement. Subjects relating to law,
compliance or supervisory issues are categorised as Compliance
and Effective Management, while other subjects conducive to raising
competence or enabling personal accomplishment of licensees are
grouped under All-round Advancement.

In order to motivate licensees and to meet their demands of diverse
interests and needs, CPD points are allowed to be acquired through
various modes of learning, including webinars and online training
classes, face-to-face seminars, e-Learning programmes and e-Quizzes.
Licensees can also choose to undertake activities offered or accredited
by the widely recognised professional associations of those professions
or areas where the expertise of such fields are complementary to that of
the estate agency trade.

CPD attainment recognitions

Under the CPD Scheme, points would be assigned to CPD activities
based on the nature of the activity and the input required from the
learner. Generally, one CPD point is awarded to one hour of activity
undertaken. Practitioners who earned 12 or more CPD points in a
12-month CPD period are considered having achieved the CPD yearly
attainment target and will be awarded the CPD Attainment Symbol.
With effect from the CPD period commencing 1 October 2013,
licensees who have achieved their CPD attainment targets for three
and five consecutive CPD periods will also be awarded the Premium
CPD Attainment Symbol — Silver (“Silver Symbol”) and Premium CPD
Attainment Symbol — Gold (“Gold Symbol”) respectively.
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In addition to the CPD Attainment Symbol, the Silver Symbol and the
Gold Symbol which are presented to individual licensees, holders of
Statement of Particulars of Business (“SPOB”) with over 80% of their
licensed employees (including the branch manager) having achieved the
yearly CPD attainment target will be awarded the CPD Mark for Estate
Agencies.

o4

Achievement

! BENFRRSCH
: BERFRRDCE
¢ BETFNRSTH

FER2019/2020F E #58 B XS EFEHE
WS EREBEIEE S BHIR

BEE2019/2020F ERHEEH BB BFH
202049 A30RERE20214F9A308 -
2019/20F BB E X HEB R FEB LR
BEXEEHERTRENFEALBE R
1,607 % (24 2 EMR2019/20F B ER
¥EBEEFRE SRERESE) MED
HeMBIFEAKIERES -

2021/22F &
b3 BREHE
Award No. of awardees
in 2021/22
FEHEEHERETRE 3313
CPD Attainment Symbol ’
RE
34372
Silver Symbol
B
53
Gold Symbol
WEREHHEXEERTRS 190°
CPD Mark for Estate Agencies

! Highest in the last nine years
2 Highest in the last five years
3 Highest in the last ten years

Extension of Deadline for Obtaining CPD Points for the CPD
Period of 2019/2020

With the extension of the deadline for the fulfilment of the CPD
attainment target for the CPD period of 2019/2020 from 30 September
2020 to 30 September 2021, 611 licensees made up the shortfall and
the total number of licensees awarded the CPD Attainment Symbol for
the CPD period of 2019/20 was 1,597 (24 of them awarded the Silver
Symbol and five of them awarded the Gold Symbol for the CPD period
of 2019/20).
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CPD Activities in the Past Three Years

Number of activities and enrolments

During the year, a total of 798 CPD activities were organised by the EAA
and other activity organisers and these CPD activities attracted 52,682
enrolments. Among the 798 activities, 241 (80% of the total number of
activities) were organised by the EAA with 10,524 enrolments (about
20% of total enrolments).

To reduce the risk of the spread of COVID-19 in the community, the EAA
has suspended its organisation of large scale face-to-face CPD seminars
since February 2020. To fulfil the needs of licensees on continuous
learning, in lieu of delivering large scale face-to-face seminars, the EAA
held 144 small scale video classes during the period having regard to the
need for maintaining sufficient social distancing amongst participants.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

F I EEHE 28 AR SEEEE S8 AR EEHE 28 AR
Activity Providers No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of

Activities Enrolments Activities Enrolments Activities Enrolments
EER
EAA 126 12,722 287 7,675 241 10,524
HENRIPHER
Estate Agency Trade 376 12,834 290 9,068 532 40,357
Ho A E RS
Other Providers 14 446 5 156 25 1,801
PR
Total 516 26,002 582 16,899 798 52,682
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s
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Highlights of activities
Cross-discipline seminars

With an aim to foster cross-discipline exchanges between estate agency
trade practitioners and professionals of other sectors as well as to
ensure a balanced mix of CPD activities to enrich licensees’ learning
experiences, a special series of CPD seminars titled “Top Tips by Elites
R —JEE e BiE T4 =" was launched in 2019. In October 2021,
Professor William Leung, former Chairman of the EAA, was invited as
the guest speaker. He shared with the participants useful tips on doing
better businesses under the topic of [ [ T JZ R ]. The seminar
was well-received by the licensees and they reflected that Professor
Leung’s talk was very inspiring and insightful.

The EAA also invited representatives of various professional associations
and regulatory bodies to deliver talks to the licensees. Guest speakers
came from various professional associations and regulatory authorities,
including the Hong Kong Bar Association; the Hong Kong Green
Building Council; the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors; the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors; the Competition Commission; the
Equal Opportunities Commission; the Hong Kong Police Force; the
Independent Commission Against Corruption; the Rating and Valuation
Department; and the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority.

CPD activities on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter Terrorist
Financing

In response to the amendment of the anti-money laundering (“AML”) and
counter-terrorist financing (“CTF”) legislation to cover the estate agency
sector, the EAA issued to the licensees its “Guidelines of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for the Estate
Agency Sector” in 2018. To help licensees not only fully understand
the legal requirements and the EAA’s guidelines in relation to AML/
CTF but also keep abreast of the requirements, CPD activities on AML/
CTF were continuously held during 2021/22. As an expansion of AML/
CTF outreach amongst licensees remains one of the EAA’s priorities,
extensive CPD activities on AML/CTF will be provided regularly.
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The Government’s Matching Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading
under the Anti-epidemic Fund

Amid the pandemic when business activities were slowing down, the
EAA encouraged licensees’ continuous enrichment of their skillset by
arranging two series of CPD training courses namely, “Learning English
through Land Search” and “Video Production for Estate Agency Trade
Using Smartphone” free-of-charge in July 2021 which were funded
partially by the Government through its “Matching Grant Scheme for
Skills Upgrading under the second round of the Anti-epidemic Fund”.
HKUSPACE was appointed to provide these two series of training
courses which were repeatedly run once or twice per month until June
2022. Some 23 sessions were held during 2021/22.

E-Learning programmes and webinars

To help compensate for the loss of face-to-face learning opportunities
resulting from the cancellations of CPD seminars for the purpose
of reducing the risk of the spread of COVID-19, more e-Learning
programmes and webinars have been conducted. As such, the number
of enrolments on the EAA’s e-Learning programmes and webinars
during the year was 8,366, an increase of 71% compared with the
previous year.

EAA’s e-Learning Programmes and Webinars in the Past Three Years

* B20214F2 7 © [ LW e, W E28E%
B Wy A ESEEETENEBEA Y

2019/20 2020/21* 2021/22
26 42 81
525 749 2,055
2,046 4,880 8,366

*

“Webinar/Online Training Class” was included as one of the learning modes of
the CPD Scheme since February 2021.
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Public Education and Trade Liaison

Consumer education

In addition to the efforts spent on law enforcement, the EAA believes
that consumers’ interests can be better protected and unpleasant
disputes with estate agents avoided by enriching their own knowledge
and practical information on property transaction. In 2021/22, the
EAA continued to promote public education across multiple platforms
with more focus on the use of digital means at the midst of COVID-19
pandemic.

In particular, owing to the increasing public concern about Hong Kong
people buying uncompleted properties situated outside Hong Kong
(“UPOH”), the EAA increased its efforts in reminding the public of the
risks of and points-to-note about purchasing UPOH throughout the year.

The EAA produced a new Announcement in the Public Interest (“API”)
to remind the public of the risks in purchasing UPOH and it was
launched on free and paid TV and radio channels from August 2021.
The TV APl was also uploaded to the EAA’s website and YouTube
channel for the public to view. To further promulgate it to the public,
the APl was broadcast through the MTR in-train TV network in a two-
week promotional campaign in January 2022 and it was also promoted
through the MTR mobile App. Advertisements on YouTube and
the display advertising networks of Google and Yahoo were placed
throughout the year. A total of over 230,000 views of the API were
recorded in the EAA’s YouTube channel.

In addition, a total of 60,000 copies of the EAA’s consumer education
booklet “Purchasing Non-local Properties Be SMART” were distributed
to the public through insertion in two local newspapers in February
2022. Related printed advertisements and Facebook posts were also
published in the above two newspapers and their Facebook pages
respectively. The booklet was also sent to all Home Affairs Enquiry
Centres for the public’s collection.

After launching the API on traditional TV platforms, the EAA also
produced a series of four bilingual animation videos about the risks of
purchasing UPOH and launched them in the EAA’s YouTube channel
from March 2022. Through simple story telling and the vivid animation,
as well as a new catchy slogan “To buy or not to buy non-local off-
plan properties? Assess the risks before you buy!”, the EAA hopes
that the public will better understand and remember the message. An
online promotional campaign was also launched after the first video was
uploaded and the campaign achieved a high hit rate of views.
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The EAA launched a series of animation videos
about the risks of purchasing UPOH.
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To make use of the online platform to reach the public, the EAA also
conducted various other online promotional campaigns in 2021/22,
including promoting the CPD Mark and the professional image of estate
agents.

Two online public seminars were held in September 2021 and
March 2022 in order to enhance the public’s knowledge in property
transactions, which were about the points-to-note on mortgage
application and purchasing non-local properties respectively. The two
online seminars were broadcast on the Facebook page of the media
partner for the seminars which allowed the online audience to interact
with the speakers in real time. Positive responses were received and
about 100,000 views of the seminars were recorded in total. Video
highlights of both seminars were also uploaded to the EAA’s website
and YouTube channel for the public’s viewing.

Media relations

It is important to keep a close relationship with the media to publicise the
EAA’s initiatives and efforts. During the year, the EAA issued 11 press
releases and held two live-streaming press conferences which gained
wide media coverage. A total of six feature interviews were also arranged
for the EAA Chairman and CEO with major print and electronic media.

To further promote consumer-related information through mass media
channels, the EAA regularly contributes articles on current topics relating
to expected services of estate agents and property transactions to the
media. In 2021/22, the EAA contributed a total of 45 articles to three
print and online columns, namely, the property magazine and website of
Sing Tao Daily, the websites of Hong Kong Economic Journal and South
China Morning Post. The EAA will continue to promote consumer-related
information through different mass media channels.
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Trade liaison and engagement

The EAA believes that effective communication with the trade is essential
to maintain a cordial relationship with the trade and to gain its support
for the work of the EAA.

In 2021/22, the EAA hosted five trade liaison meetings of which three
were conducted by online conferencing due to COVID-19. During the
meetings, issues of properties situated outside Hong Kong and of other
mutual concern were discussed. The trade was also informed on the
most updated initiatives of the EAA. During the year, the EAA also held
three regular focus group meetings with frontline practitioners in Chai
Wan, Mei Foo and Tseung Kwan O respectively with positive feedback.
Besides, the EAA also attended different trade events to maintain a
cordial relationship with the trade.

EERTHEAGIEEERTREESE -
EAA held regular focus group meetings with frontline
practitioners.

From time to time, the EAA issues letters or reminders to licensees in the
form of email or special notices published on the EAA’s website to alert
them to certain requirements relating to the estate agency practice, and
reminders or new measures from the Government. In 2021/22, a total of
eight such letters or notices were issued.

EEREERFEMGRRTHRITHASE -
The EAA hosted regular liaison meetings with the
representatives of major trade associations.
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On the other hand, the EAA published publications with an aim of
enhancing the professional standard of estate agents. For example,
during the year, a new booklet titled “/nquiry Hearing Cases — A Selection
VI” was published in March 2022 for distributing to new licensees.
Another leaflet titled “Conducting unlicensed estate agency work is a
criminal offence” was also produced and distributed to estate agency
shops by the educational outreach team of the Enforcement Section.

In addition, the EAA published four issues of newsletters for licensees,
namely Horizons, in the year to keep licensees abreast of the EAA’s
regulatory measures and our latest activities.

With a view to encouraging estate agency shops to reduce their
electricity consumption and thus reducing carbon emissions, the EAA
introduced an “Estate Agents Energy Saving Award Scheme” in 2021/22
and held a kick-off ceremony in April 2021. A series of online promotions
was launched after the kick-off ceremony in order to publicise the
Scheme and raise awareness of the pollution caused by carbon
emissions to the trade and the public. It was also reported in “Green
Shop CONNECT”, an e-newsletter published by the Hong Kong Green
Shop Alliance to its over 700 alliance shop/shopping mall members and
supporting organisations.

A total of over 900 estate agency shops enrolled in the Scheme which
was concluded in March 2022. In the end, a total of 387 participating
shops were awarded and a total of over 250,000 units of electricity
were saved. The top three shops which saved the most electricity usage
were conferred the Grand Awards. A live-streaming award presentation
ceremony was held on the Facebook page of the media partner of the
ceremony, on 22 March 2022. A series of online and print publicity were
launched to promote the ceremony. It was the first time that the EAA
held an online ceremony and the feedback was positive. There were
plenty of licensees leaving positive comments on the Facebook page
during the live broadcast. Over 45,000 views of the playback video of
the ceremony were also recorded four days after the live streaming.
Certificates and window stickers were also delivered to all the awarded
shops for public recognition.

On the other hand, the EAA also maintained a good relationship with
other external stakeholders, including the Government, professional
institutions and other public bodies. As it is essential for estate
agents to keep informed of relevant government regulations and new
developments in the market, the EAA relayed the news updates and
information we received from various departments or organisations such
as Buildings Department, Consumer Council, Housing Authority, the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority, Land Registry, Lands Department, Law
Society of Hong Kong, the Police, Rating and Valuation Department,
the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority, Securities and
Futures Commission and Urban Renewal Authority, etc to our licensees
through our website or email.

Estate Agents Authority Annual Report 2021/22
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
HEREEER
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Estate Agents Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Estate Agents Authority
set out on pages 114 to 144, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of income and
expenditure, statement of movements in reserve and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of Estate Agents Authority as at 31 March 2022, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Estate Agents Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of Estate Agents Authority in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Estate Agents Authority’s Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Estate Agents Ordinance, and for such
internal control as Estate Agents Authority determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Estate Agents Authority is
responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Estate Agents Authority either
intends to liquidate Estate Agents Authority or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Estate Agents Authority is responsible for overseeing its financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
12 of the Estate Agents Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Estate Agents Authority’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by Estate Agents Authority.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Estate Agents Authority’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
Estate Agent Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause Estate Agents Authority to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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BREMETIN - BIMIEEE BRBETAET We communicate with Estate Agents Authority regarding, among other
ZBEMSFE TR EAETEIE (BER matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
PIEET AR SR A N EPESIE 2 (A EE K findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

ERFE) TR © identify during our audit.
EE e BEM A ST Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
HEDEED Certified Public Accountants
BA Hong Kong

202247 A26H 26 July 2022
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WX EER
HE2022F3A31HILEE

Statement of Income and Expenditure
For the year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
FI5E BT BIT
NOTES HK$ HK$
WA Income
IR E Licence fees 5 83,966,066 81,460,361
EZAE Examination fees 6 8,732,100 7,547,400
MEMA Interest income 379,255 2,233,797
93,077,421 91,241,558
EHAbIA Other income
BB X EREPREE Reversal of provision of professional
development subsidy 7 1,249,759 -
FEEHA Sundry income 8 286,515 -
HEYE - HeS REE = Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 3,100 19,500
1,539,374 19,500
! Expenditure
BT & Auditor’s remuneration 130,000 102,000
NBHERT Community education expenses 1,869,370 1,359,875
i FERLEHAAHZHE Complaints, investigation and
disciplinary proceedings expenses 74,076 70,218
mE - WRRREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 10 6,711,680 4,661,523
CREEEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11 4,676,169 5,831,319
BMEERERBNER Equipment maintenance and
communication expenses 1,843,236 1,980,524
MEREES Y Estate agent card expenses 136,230 123,550
Rin & Insurance 1,496,800 1,469,534
HEBFEIMELH Interest expense on lease liabilities 94,253 138,846
REEEY Motor vehicle operating expenses 156,065 95,642
MAERABERX Office accommodation and related
expenses 3,399,123 2,437,596
BE Postage 361,608 358,003
ENfRI B XA Printing and stationery 831,234 738,934
BEERBEA Professional service fees 778,800 148,300
NHRARRERE Public relations and liaison 32,793 15,507
EERES Publicity and advertising 7,600 -
BIMA Staff costs
- Fre KRR — wages, salaries and allowances 49,353,372 51,208,958
- BHMEAEL MR — contributions to mandatory
provident fund scheme 1,445,456 1,455,765
ZHARBE Service fees for examinations 6,102,245 4,298,997
EIEBIF Training activity expenses 627,028 182,130
H A K Other expenses 1,230,813 1,061,140
81,357,951 77,738,361
FARER Surplus for the year 13,258,844 13,522,697
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B FEAR R 3R Statement of Financial Position
202293 A31H At 31 March 2022
2022 2021
PRt BT BT
NOTES HK$ HK$
IERBEE Non-current assets
L E N SN L] Property, plant and equipment 10 144,933,859 77,526,803
FREEE Right-of-use assets 11 4,176,670 3,632,716
EEME  HERFZEZ Deposit paid for acquisition of
Bf&ES property, plant and equipment 12 - 8,692,500
149,110,529 89,852,019
MENEE Current assets
FEWARSR ~ ENRIBRES Debtors, prepayments and deposits 1,500,649 3,624,191
TEHTFK Time deposits 13 23,559,232 35,880,903
WRITHEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 13 125,548,515 156,973,152
150,608,396 196,478,246
mEBE Current liabilities
JERTBRFR N FERTTE B Creditors and accruals 10,848,045 9,698,820
FESTERIT 2 508 Amount due to Government 14 - 2,099,512
ERNEEERED Professional development subsidy
payable 7 = 606,323
AHEE Contract liabilities 15 73,952,593 72,346,502
HEaE Lease liabilities 16 1,867,297 4,049,179
86,667,935 88,800,336
MEEEFE Net current assets 63,940,461 107,677,910
REERREEE Total assets less current liabilities 213,050,990 197,529,929
1 Reserve 210,587,489 197,328,645
SEMENAE Non-current liability
HEBaE Lease liabilities 16 2,463,501 201,284
213,050,990 197,529,929

BN B114E 1448 2 B HRER L 2022F 7
AoeHEMERBEE R EKBIENR
BT WHNATRERSE

The financial statements on pages 114 to 144 were approved and
authorised for issue by the members of Estate Agents Authority on
26 July 2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

BE®K BT
TR TTIBAEE

Elaine LIU
CHAIRMAN

Ruby HON Yuen-ping
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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fEEE R Statement of Movements in Reserve
HZE2022F3A31HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

#Et

Total

BIT

HK$
720204 A1H At 1 April 2020 183,805,948
FREH Surplus for the year 13,522,697
R2021FE3A31H At 31 March 2021 197,328,645
FREH Surplus for the year 13,258,844
720223 A31H At 31 March 2022 210,587,489
HEBHERBEERNZEZEAR - Reserve represents retained cumulative surplus from the operations of

Estate Agents Authority.
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HERERXR Statement of Cash Flows
HE2022F3A31HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HKS
EEES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRRH Surplus for the year 13,258,844 13,522,697
BT SIEELAE Adjustments for:
FLEWA Interest income (379,255) (2,233,797)
HEBEZAETH Interest expense on lease liabilities 94,253 138,846
WE - WBENREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,711,680 4,661,523
FREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,676,169 5,831,319
HEYE - #HEsNERE 2 W Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (3,100) (19,500)
LEELRHR 2 EEIRERE  Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 24,358,591 21,901,088
FEUARR - FERFIERIESM A Decrease (increase) in debtors, prepayments and
(3% hn) deposits 2,079,222 (1,411,723
FENBRF L FEETE B 121 CR4*)  Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals 1,149,225 (174,707)
FETBUR 2 5038 O >) 180 (Decrease) increase in amount due to Government (2,099,512) 2,099,512
R EEERE B Decrease in professional development subsidy
payable (606,323) (19,944,677)
EHBaEEMN Increase in contract liabilities 1,606,091 4,775,776
B MEIRG FE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 26,487,294 7,245,269
RETEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
GFEFERER Placement of time deposits (23,559,232) (35,880,908)
IREUE BiE Withdrawal of time deposits 35,880,903 70,471,747
EEME - HeEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (65,426,236) (837,459)
BEWE  MUBERXE2EMES  Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment - (8,692,500)
B FE Interest received 423,575 3,053,759
HEE MR REZFSZIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3,100 19,500
BB REFTR) IR F5E NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (52,677,890) 28,134,144
RMEIBMARS CASH USED IN A FINANCING ACTIVITY
XHEERE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,234,041) (5,831,460)
BeRBESEEMORLD)EIMFE  NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (31,424,637) 29,547,953
FUMR e RRSEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 156,973,152 127,425,199
FHROReRRSEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 125,548,515 156,973,152
RERREEEMEHRIIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS:
IRITEESBR IR S Bank balances and cash 125,548,515 156,973,152
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Notes to the Financial Statements

H

R BB R A
CHES

RAFER @ BERNRETBHRER
HEeBXEABEESTMAS (&
BERERE]) B Z(BEMBR
FREANEFTA - ZFEFTAR2021
F4A18 k2 1&F 1A 2 F 2 HIfE 5% 5l
R e

BEEMBREERZ165REAT R
Amendment to HKFRS 16
BBV BREERF16FRIEFT A
Amendment to HKFRS 16
BRI EERIZEI5E -
EEGRTERIZE395% -
BRI EERIETSE -
BRI EEREA5 R
BBV BREERF16FIEFT A
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

RAFERAT BV RELENER]
- WENEERAFEMBEFE
ZEBRR BRI R, R I E T
BERAB HBEERERERTE -

HZE2022F3A31HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
—RER 1. General
HWEREBEER(EER])BER Estate Agents Authority (‘EAA”) was established with the principal
199745 A 29 A M & (i 2= R functions of promoting integrity and competence of estate agents
BIY AL o = EBERE AR EMENRE and issuing estate agents’ licences under the Estate Agents
MEXERT  EaXENEEK Ordinance dated 29 May 1997 (date of enactment). The address
o REHEWERERR  EERY of the registered office and principal place of business of EAA is 7/F,
M EE R B E M AR BE E-Trade Plaza, 24 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.
ENRE24RREESTE -
R EHREABITZES - MABTRE The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which
REERNINEE - is the same as the functional currency of EAA.
ERAFITRKIET 2B 2. Application of New and Amendments
BRBELEAN(FEYH to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
wmEZEER]) Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, EAA has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2021
for the preparation of the financial statements:

B RV R A B 2 1 R E

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

20216 A30R 2 & B A E AR 5 5 < 0 5%
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
FEEThE —F MR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-Phase 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on EAA’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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EERIY

R F KR Z A
HE B A FE A LA T 2 AR A0 M 18 R AR R
BN B REERFRT RIEFTA :

BBV BRELERFE1TR
HKFRS 17
BBV BREEAEIRIETTA
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BRI GREERIE105% K
BB ERIE28REFTA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
BEGHERIEIRETTA
Amendments to HKAS 1
HE G ERE1R LB RS
HREBREE2RIEFTA
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEGERIESTRIERTA
Amendments to HKAS 8
BBGERIE125REFTAR
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB ERIE165RIEFTA
Amendments to HKAS 16
BB ERIEITRETA
Amendments to HKAS 37
BEEMBREEANERT A
Amendments to HKFRSs

1 202291 A1 Ak 2 4 RAR FE

FEﬁE%( °

M2023F1 A1H s 2 &GN FEH
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EEREEERREMMERAEMF
WEERFTREITAZER - B1
S B ATSCORIRIRE B K AT B R R
KR PELEBRTE -

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, EAA has
not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Rig & 4 MABRRIERT?

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments?
BESAEZR S| A

Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

REERABERAERAZANEELERIEA®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

MENVAIE R EY B E A 75 $A?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

B TR R

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

BRHAFT R ER?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

HE - GMEL BERBEGBELERIAE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

M3 - WS K RE —ERITRE AR Z B

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use!

ERREEH —BITE A8

Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

BB SRS AERI2018 - 2020, F & k!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The management of EAA anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
in current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Estate Agents Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
EAA takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

EAA recognises income when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by EAA’s performance as EAA performs;

° EAA’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as EAA performs; or

o EAA’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to EAA and EAA has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or services.

A contract liability represents EAA’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which EAA has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract is accounted for
and presented on a net basis.

Income from licence fees

Income from licence fees is recognised over the licence fees period
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation, as the licensees simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by EAA’s performance
as EAA performs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Income from examination fees

Income from examination fees is recognised at a point in time
at the date of examination when the service is delivered to
candidates.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict EAA’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, EAA
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

EAA as a lessee
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
EAA as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

° any initial direct costs incurred by EAA; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by EAA in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

EAA presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, EAA recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, EAA uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects EAA exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

EAA remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease
term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
EAA as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

EAA presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
statement of financial position.

Lease modlfications

EAA accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, EAA remeasures the lease liability based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

EAA accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
incentives from lessor by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, EAA allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and deprecation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the statement of income and expenditure.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, EAA has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), EAA
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liability are recognised when EAA
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liability are initially measured at fair
value except for receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liability are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liability, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that economic benefits will flow into EAA and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Amortisation cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

EAA recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss (“ECL”)
on financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is
done based on EAA’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all instruments, EAA measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, EAA recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, EAA compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
EAA considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, EAA
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when past due, unless EAA has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

EAA regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3. FESHBE® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

S@MIAGE Financial instruments (continued)

THEEE Financial assets (continued)

BREERE (B Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iy BAMEE (i)  Definition of default
EERRARANIBEERRER For internal credit risk management, EAA considers an event
ME ' WRBEFHERIBHEEL of default occurs when information developed internally or
# o SAE R RSk B SR ARIRE obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
BHERRKRR - EEATKABE unlikely to pay its creditors, including EAA, in full.

AEEEA (BREER) BHE
R RIBRGEEM -

(i) FEEMETHEE (i) Credit-impaired financial assets
BRLE AN LEECEER A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
FIARRAEEREBTFTEZE of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
HEME  SREELREER future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
B - eREEFEREZIES Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
FEUATAEBREN observable data about the following events:
@ BEBABAZEKRGTH (@)  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
2
by EREHX - WWELHNEH () a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
==L event:
() EBABRAIREREIETT (©) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
HAab 5 &8 & 3k bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
O HRPERBHFESHE (d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
EZERTISEEX ° asset because of financial difficulties.
(v) MEEECR (iv)  Write-off policy
BEEENBERRZHFHBERE EAA writes off a financial asset when there is information
B TS TR B 2 I B B B ] Y Bl A 2B indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
(R SGHFHEETEEXD and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
EAWERR) @ EERZME when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
TREE - BREEERKEERF has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
WEREEEZE (WER) - B2 written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
HERBEN DI RS EEE EAA’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
ZHIR o —IEMISHERK —IBEUH where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
BREM o EEZKEETRIK event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in the
SRR o statement of income and expenditure.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v}  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to EAA in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that EAA expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

EAA derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If EAA neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, EAA recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If EAA retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
EAA continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liability

Financial liability is classified in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definition of a
financial liability.

Financial liability

Financial liability (including creditors) is subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liability

EAA derecognises financial liability when, and only when, EAA’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee benefits-provident fund obligations

EAA operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Both EAA and
the employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500)
per employee per month. EAA’s contributions to the MPF scheme
are expensed as incurred.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying EAA’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management had made the following
judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment assessment of debtors

Debtors are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of income
and expenditure when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired.

In determining individual allowances, EAA has considered that
detailed procedures have been in place to monitor this risk. In
determining whether impairment assessment of HKFRS 9 is
required, EAA takes into consideration the aging status, the
likelihood of collection and the estimated discounted future cash
flows. Specific allowance is made for debtors that are unlikely
to be collected. If the financial conditions of these debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, allowances may be required.

EAA assesses the internal credit ratings for debtors. Except
for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKFRS 9 the ECL of which is assessed individually, debtors are
grouped based on internal credit rating and the ECL on these
assets are assessed collectively using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on EAA’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and EAA’s debtors are disclosed in
note 19.
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ERE 5. Licence Fees
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FERER B 4B A Total licence fees 83,966,066 81,460,361
Z3E 6. Examination Fees
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
HWEREREXBERES Estate agents and salespersons qualifying
examinations 8,732,100 7,547,400

ERERBREBRE

HZE2020F3A31BILFE €<
R2020%F 1 AE M EABEAFTEA
RE—FREXERED - Ui
MESHNCERETRERER
HEEERBKFE - FEEEFET - B
20203 A31HBABFHEESUER
B (EA) BB EXBERROAL
EESHREE RUT ZEEHRAS500%8 T
—SBRE - ARETEIN2021F3A
31HE®R THEHAERHZTER
2021 QH30R I - EEERE &M
RIBEFE MR BNA 2 Bt -

FERIA

EE R BBFBNBEREEST
MR REIRFA Y EBETE - AFEA
REMELE IR o BT A EER
EIRREERNT5%  H#:25%8]
MR EE - EMEFIREHER
202157 ARG » WHENHE20224F
64 °

Bi1E
RIB BB IR0 8715 - BB RER
REATBFIEH

7.

Reversal of Provision of Professional
Development Subsidy

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board approved
the provision of a one-off professional development subsidy
to individual licensees which was announced in January 2020
to assist them in developing and maintaining their professional
service standard under the difficult operating environment. Under
the scheme, holders of a valid estate agent’s licence (individual) or
salesperson’s licence as at 31 March 2020 would each receive a
one-off subsidy of HK$500 from EAA by cheques. Upon the end of
the scheme by 31 March 2021 and all unclaimed cheques expired
by 30 September 2021, EAA has reversed the unutilised provision
made in prior years.

Sundry Income

EAA had successfully applied for the Government’s Matching
Grant Scheme for Skills Upgrading under the Anti-epidemic Fund
to provide two series of trainings to licensees. The Government
would bear 75% of the total cost of the approved training courses,
while the remaining 25% would be borne by EAA. Both training
courses commenced in July 2021 and would be repeatedly
launched till June 2022.

Taxation

EAA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section 87 of
the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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10. ¥3% - HBRRRE

10. Property, Plant and Equipment

RETHR
B HENERE RE GRREE B Bt
Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold Motor and
buildings  improvements vehicles fixtures Equipment Total

BT BT BT BT BT BT

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BA CoST
720204 A18 At 1 Apr 2020 75,991,930 5,730,014 1,204,246 9,340,332 18789508 111,056,930
RE Additions - - - 29,950 807,509 837,459
Bi Disposal - - (557,264) - - (557,264)
2021437318 At 31 March 2021 75,991,930 5,730,914 646,982 9,370,282 19597017 111,337,125
NE Additions 63,622,060 2,548,887 - 6,999,075 948,714 74,118,736
g Disposal - (5,730,914) - (1,176,202) (707,486) (7,614,602)
202263 A31R At 31 March 2022 139,613,990 2,548,887 646,982 15,193,155 10838245 177,841,259
& DEPRECIATION
202084 A1H At 1 Apr 2020 2,993,240 4,372,443 605,788 3,975,598 17,758,994 29,706,063
ENEE Provided for the year 1,519,838 857,981 194,095 1,600,663 488,946 4,661,523
Hisa Eliminated on disposal - - (557,264) - - (557,264)
12021437318 At 31 March 2021 4513078 5,230,424 242619 5,576,261 18,247,940 33,810,322
FREE Provided for the year 2,686,243 976,549 194,004 2,318,429 536,365 6,711,680
fiisa Eliminated on disposal - (5,730,914) - (1,176,202) (707,486) (7,614,602)
12021437318 At 31 March 2022 7,199,321 476,059 436,713 6,718,488 18,076,819 32,907,400
REE NET BOOK VALUES
2020437318 At 31 March 2022 132,414,669 2,072,828 210,269 8,474,667 1761426 144,933,859
12021437318 At 31 March 2021 71,478,852 500,490 404,363 3,794,021 1,349,077 77,526,803

WE - W R REBITENIREAFE
FEMLBEGEIRIA T FRMIEE K

7N

HE L NET

HEWMEKE

T
BMEEE
B

2%
20% IR E F 1
(HPREEF)

30%
20%
20%%£30%

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment

2%

20% or over the period
of the lease term if it is
less than 5 years

30%

20%

20% to 30%
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1. ERAEEE 11. Right-of-use Assets
HEWE WAERE B
Leased Office
properties equipment Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
A202263H31H As at 31 March 2022
BRAE©E Carrying amount 3,980,577 196,093 4,176,670
A2021E3H31H As at 31 March 2021
RESE Carrying amount 3,352,575 280,141 3,632,716
HZ2022%3A31H For the year ended
IEFE 31 March 2022
HeEs® Depreciation charge 4,592,121 84,048 4,676,169
HZE2021%F3831H For the year ended
LEE 31 March 2021
hES Depreciation charge 5,747,271 84,048 5,831,319
2022 2021
BT BIT
HK$ HK$
FRRBEMRTDHIRSEE Total cash outflow for leases
during the year (5,234,041) (5,831,460)
FHANERAEEENAESE Additions to right-of-use assets
during the year 5,220,123 —
EY;I;ZOZQESH S1HILFE  EER For the year ended 31 March 2022, EAA leases offices and office
A= @ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ#)ﬁ’“*ﬂ#ﬂ#ﬁif&ﬁ equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
HEASYMETER AIFELSTF - H for fixed term of 3 years to 5 years, but may have extension and
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&?&t LIERE - FHE TR termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
BENELEHEETE  EFEET basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
A E'Hkihﬂ A - EHEEREH & In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
FETABCEHRNRERER - B cancellable period, EAA applies the definition of a contract and
ERERTANTEREESL R determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
FIBTTAYEARR o
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13.
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12.

13.

Deposit Paid for Acquisition of Property,
Plant and Equipment

On 26 February 2021, EAA entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to purchase an office
premise at the consideration of HK$61,000,000. As at 31 March
2021, EAA had paid deposit of HK$6,100,000 in accordance
with the sale and purchase agreement, and other related costs of
HK$2,592,500. The acquisition was completed on 13 May 2021.

Bank Balances and Cash and Time
Deposits

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by EAA and short-
term bank deposits with remaining tenure of 20 to 67 days (2021:
20 to 62 days) at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 0.3% per annum (2021: 0.01% to 0.7% per annum).

As at 31 March 2022, a fund of HK$67,749,796 (2021:
HK$115,115,694) was maintained for the plan, if any, to acquire
further office accommodation or to pursue other projects in future.
The amount of the fund is determined at the discretion of EAA after
setting aside sufficient fund for sustaining its operation.

Time deposit comprises a short-term bank deposit with remaining
tenure of 133 days (2021: 133 days) at prevailing market interest
rate of 0.55% per annum (2021: 0.55% per annum).

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of these assets
approximate their fair values.
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14. Amount Due to Government

Under the second round of Anti-epidemic Fund in 2020, the
Government provided a one-off cash subsidy to individual
licensees of the estate agency trade (“programme”) via EAA to
offer timely financial support in view of the adverse impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on their practice of estate agency work. EAA
had started disbursing the Government’s cash subsidy by bank
cashier’s orders since May 2020 in batches. the disbursement
was completed by the end of the programme on 30 June 2021.
The amount due to Government was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable upon completion of the programme. As at 31 March
2022, the amount due to Government was fully repaid upon
completion of the programme.

15. Contract Liabilities

2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
IEFL AR B UL A Deferred licence fee income 69,984,347 67,820,318
B RR RS IR Licence application fees received 3,968,246 4,526,184
73,952,593 72,346,502
R E Licence fees

2022 2021
BT BIT
HK$ HK$

BHEZNEBERABESEFIMN Licence fee income recognised that was

AHBEREH included in the contract liability balance

at the beginning of the year 55,534,622 54,269,873

REREEIR  12,630,22978 TTHY IR AT
FRERZ UL A (20214F : 12,285,696/
) FEH e aRERRE T @A
WIER - BWEUEREBBE IR
EREARBERMZSHORIE &
PREEARDIERIEAR » AR ©

At the end of the reporting period, deferred licence fee income
amounting to HK$12,630,229 (2021: HK$12,285,696) were not
expected to be realised within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Licence application fees received represent
amounts paid by estate agents applying for the licences which
were still being processed but not yet approved at the end of the
reporting period.
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16. HEAE 16. Lease Liabilities
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FENMFEaE Lease liabilities due:
—F2ZN Within one year 1,867,297 4,049,179
—F A BTN BIBRF Within a period of more than one
year but not exceeding two years 1,904,640 85,127
LA EBTBBRF Within a period of more than two
years but not exceeding five years 558,861 116,157
4,330,798 4,250,463
B EBRNDIEMER £ % Less: Amounts due for settlement within
(ERBBETET) twelve months (shown under
current liabilities) (1,867,297) (4,049,179)
E+ @ AZEIEREN &8 Amounts due for settlement after
twelve months 2,463,501 201,284
17. EREIE 17. Capital Commitments
2022 2021
BT BIT
HK$ HK$
AT HECD A BEAREIT Capital expenditure contracted for but not
WEAINHHEARRAS provided in the financial statements in
respect of:
— BB  WERKRE - WKt - acquisition of property, plant and
12Tt equipment, as stated in note 12 - 54,900,000
18. EXEAMEE 18. Capital Risk Management
EERNEREERREMIARA EAA’s capital comprises primarily the surplus reserve fund
EZENEBFEES  HEAEERZ accumulated since its establishment, and its objective when
EEREE REEMIFELE  tMek managing the capital is to ensure that EAA will be able to continue
TER A ERIEN 2 S P {= FaE as a going concern so that it can continue to promote integrity and
7 e competence of estate agents.
EERTHRTTEIEAERNLERE EAA regularly reviews and manages its capital to ensure adequacy
NBREEREREMNESUIELE for both the operational and capital needs. EAA operates a
REXRENK - EERUELANRBRE zero distribution policy with regard to surpluses generated.
TEHERKE - EERBEEHINE EAA maintains a fund for the plan to acquire permanent office
SUBEBEERE  #E—SES accommodation in future after setting aside sufficient fund for
LAEETEHEBBEKAPAE o sustaining EAA’s operation.
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18. EXE R EIE )

18. Capital Risk Management (continued)

WERESFARMEERBMNER
g - EERTHRBMNERENT
B ARRZEITAEERLK

EAA charges annual licence fees on the estate agents. EAA
regularly reviews the need to increase licence fees to ensure
operational needs are fully covered.

10. €@ T H 19. Financial Instruments

a. S@IEER a. Categories of financial instruments
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
SREE Financial assets:
BB EK AT EZ SREE Financial assets at amortised cost
E b FE UK Sundry receivables 164,584 1,511,825
BEffEe Deposit paid 580,621 1,381,638
RS - RITEBERS Time deposits, bank balances
and cash 149,107,747 192,854,055
149,852,952 195,747,518
SRaE: Financial liabilities:
BESHAAR Amortised costs
JESTBRFR Creditors 10,848,045 9,698,820
FERTERIT 2 5RIR Amount due to Government = 2,099,512
JENEEERERY Professional development
subsidy payable - 606,323
10,848,045 12,404,655
b. SREAKEEEERBEK b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

EERZIZESRTABRAM
FEY TR - EHITFAR - SRITHEER R
R BNRR - BANBE 2K
AEENEXHRED - %52
BMTAFBEREBMENE - %
FemTAZERRERBREMS
R (BEAEER) - FERR
KREIE BB o Al REZE
FERRHBEREN T X - EXEEE
BRENEZERRR - ARERA] K2
B N B RO B e B 1R

EAA’s financial instruments include sundry receivables, time
deposits, bank balances and cash, creditors, amount due to
Government and professional development subsidy payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in timely and effective manner.
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19. Financial Instruments (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

EAA is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets.
Interest bearing financial assets are mainly balances with
banks which are all short term in nature. Therefore, any
future variation in interest rates will not have a significant
impact on the results of EAA.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
EAA. EAA’s exposure of its counterparties are continuously
monitored, reviewed and approved.

In order to minimise the credit risk, EAA makes adequate
impairment losses for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
EAA considers that EAA’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

In determining the ECL for debtors, EAA has taken into
account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. EAA has considered
the consistently low historical default rate and concluded
that credit risk is inherent in EAA’s sundry receivables. EAA
has further assessed that sundry receivables have not had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
risk of default is insignificant, and therefore, no impairment
has been recognised.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
material impairment allowance on deposit paid was provided
based on the ECL assessment.

The credit risk on time deposits and liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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190. €@t T B ) 19. Financial Instruments (continued)
b. SmEEKEEBRERBEEE b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

=EERE(E) Credit risk (continueq)
EERAISEERRITARR T EAA's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
R following categories:
R EBE E AR Ll TREE
Internal credit rating Description Financial assets
fB1T RBGEFHZEHRBREE - BWEFEERENRE T+l AR EEE
1B
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have 12-month ECL
any past-due amounts
BEREE KERIBHBEREERMBENIHBRENNER T _AREREEE
B
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle after  12-month ECL
due date
it RBAEK 2 ERZINEEBIR - EERR B VRERARE 2HEREEBE -
EIEIN BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL-not
recognition through information developed internally or credit-impaired
external resources
E1E BERBREREELREERE FHIRHREEEE -
EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL-credit-
impaired
G BEBRNEBARYBRENBRELEERTEERATKRE  FIARKTHE
P
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off

difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

» -
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190. €@t T B ) 19. Financial Instruments (continued)
b. LRIEAKREEBERBXKGE) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
EEmE (& Credit risk (continueq)
TERHFNEEREMEE (A The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of EAA’s
TTRHEEEEFTE) THE 2 financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:
=B :
T=@A=%
HMIEETR RBEETR 2HBEHEEFSR REAE
External Internal 12-month or
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
REHEAARNEREE
Financial assets at amortised cost
Hh R ik EGI(RE) TE AR EERHE 164,584 1,511,825
Sundry receivables N/A Performing (note @) 12-month ECL
BfES TER &7 (Fista) TZEARBESEE 580,621 1,381,638
Deposit paid N/A Performing (note @)~ 12-month ECL
TFHER - BITEBRERE Aa3EA3 TER TEARBEEEE 149,107,747 192,854,055
Time deposits, bank balances and cash ~ Aa3 to A3 N/A 12-month ECL
AT Note:
@ BABEERKRERMS @ = (@  For the purpose of internal credit risk management, EAA uses

B B P 8 H A At R R
B RENMBEER - Ut
BaERREERRELR
FE e

REEZEE

EEREEEHRDESERE
ERRERBE  RECHEE
%Z%__LHH E':'qu&ﬁﬁ;qﬁi&um
BECERREELEE 2R
EeRREIRER HEERER
B AR ERREBARFER
;rjl’/g\ ﬁ'J&,\B%EEi/ALE LA ==
//quJﬁi’—uﬂ»ﬁ °

TREGIEERITESRAE
REERZHBTANEEE - &
RIBBEEERARERINE
MABZRFEHRE AR
CREBEIARMRASRE

the financial information of the past-due information of sundry
receivables and deposit paid to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with management of EAA, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of EAA’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. Management of EAA
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserve and
continuously monitors the forecast and actual cash flows.

The following table details EAA’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which EAA can be required to pay.
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10. @@ T Ew) 19. Financial Instruments (continued)
b. SmEEKEEBRERBEEE b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

REELRERE E) Liquidity risk (continued)
TS RAERRE
ERAI= 0Z30X S 125 RELHE FREE
Weighted
average Total
effective 0-30 1-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate days 15 years  cash flows amount
BT BT BT BT BT
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2022 2022
B R Creditors - 10,718,045 130,000 - 10,848,045 10,848,045
HEAE Lease liabilities 2 161,086 1,771,946 2,493,069 4,426,101 4,330,798
10,879,131 1,901,946 2,493,069 15,274,146 15,178,843
20215 2021
FERERR Creditors - 9,596,820 102,000 - 9,698,820 9,698,820
JERBF 258 Amount dueto
Government - - 2,099,512 - 2,099,512 2,099,512
EREZEEAL  Professional
development
subsidy payable - - 606,323 - 606,323 606,323
MEBE Lease liabilties 2 576,690 3,496,890 205800 4,279,380 4,250,463

10,173,510 6,304,725 205,800 16,684,085 16,655,118
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10. €M T HE @

c. DYEE c. Fair values

19. Financial Instruments (continueq)

TREENEMABZAFE
B HMRASRESMEER
M EEBRAEE -

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

EERRR  NUERKRIZEH
RAANRNEREEN CRAE
ZEREEEAE A HEERED -

EAA considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their corresponding fair
values.

20. MEEBHELENE B YR

20. Reconciliation of a Liability Arising From
Financing Activity

TRFMEERAARDTDNE &
B8 ERAERSNERLE -
RETHHELNEEARS BN
AR L TEBREERORERE

KPDERKAREZDRESREN

The table below details changes in EAA’s liability arising from
financing activity, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liability arising from financing activity is that for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EAA’s statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activity.

afE-
HESE
Lease
liabilities
BT
HK$
K2020%F4 418 At 1 April 2020 9,943,077
BERDR Financing cash flow (5,831,460)
FEXH Interest expense 138,846
202183 A31H At 31 March 2021 4,250,463
BRERSAR Financing cash flow (5,234,041
FEXH Interest expense 94,253
EREHHHE New lease entered 5,220,123
A202243 A31H At 31 March 2022 4,330,798
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